
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
AGENDA 

 

7.00 pm 
Thursday 

27 February 2020 
Council Chamber - 

Town Hall 

 
Members 8: Quorum 4 
 
COUNCILLORS: 
 

Conservative Group 
(4) 

Residents’ Group 
(1) 

Upminster & Cranham  
Residents’ Group 

(1) 

Dilip Patel (Chairman) 
Timothy Ryan (Vice-Chair) 

Maggie Themistocli 
Ray Best 

 

Reg Whitney 
 

Linda Hawthorn 

Independent Residents 
Group 

(1) 

Labour Group 
(1) 

 

Graham Williamson Keith Darvill  

 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: 
Taiwo Adeoye - 01708 433079 

taiwo.adeoye@onesource.co.uk 
 

To register to speak at the meeting please call 01708 433100 
before Tuesday 25 February 2020 

 

Public Document Pack



Strategic Planning Committee, 27 February 2020 

 
 

 

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London 
Borough of Havering 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, 
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

 filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at 
a meeting as it takes place or later; or 

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so 
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the 
person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary 
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable 
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from 
which to be able to report effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and 
walking around could distract from the business in hand. 
 

 



Strategic Planning Committee, 27 February 2020 

 
 

 



Strategic Planning Committee, 27 February 2020 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
 The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 

events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation. 
 
These are the arrangements in case of fire or other events that might require the 
meeting room or building’s evacuation. (Double doors at the entrance to the Council 
Chamber and door on the right hand corner (marked as an exit). 
 
Proceed down main staircase, out the main entrance, turn left along front of building 
to side car park, turn left and proceed to the “Fire Assembly Point” at the corner of the 
rear car park.  Await further instructions. 
 
Development presentations 
I would like to inform everyone that Councillors will receive presentations on proposed 
developments, generally when they are at the pre-application stage. This is to enable 
Members of the committee to view the development before a planning application is 
submitted and to comment upon it. The development does not constitute an 
application for planning permission and any comments made upon it are provisional 
and subject to full consideration of any subsequent application and the comments 
received as a result of consultation, publicity and notification.   
 
Applications for decision 
I would like to remind members of the public that Councillors have to make decisions 
on planning applications strictly in accordance with planning principles. 
 
I would also like to remind members of the public that the decisions may not always 
be popular, but they should respect the need for Councillors to take decisions that will 
stand up to external scrutiny or accountability. 
 
Would everyone in the chamber note that they are not allowed to communicate with or 
pass messages to Councillors sitting on the Committee during the meeting. 
 
 

2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 
MEMBERS  

 
 (if any) - receive. 

 
 

3 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  
 
 Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the agenda at this 

point of the meeting. 
 
Members may still disclose any interest in an item at any time prior to the 
consideration of the matter. 
 
 



Strategic Planning Committee, 27 February 2020 

 
 

 

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 2) 
 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 

30 January 2020 and to authorise the Chairman to sign them. 
 
 

5 DEVELOPMENT PRESENTATIONS (Pages 3 - 4) 
 
 Report attached. 

 
 

6 PE/00843/2019 - SITES NR02/03 & NR06A/6B NEW ROAD, RAINHAM (Pages 5 - 
10) 

 
 Report attached. 

 
 

7 APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION (Pages 11 - 14) 
 
 Report attached. 

 
 

8 P0498.19 -  22 - 44 NORTH STREET, ROMFORD (Pages 15 - 36) 
 
 Report attached. 

 
 

9 P1604.17 - 148 - 192 NEW ROAD, RAINHAM (Pages 37 - 88) 
 
 Report attached. 

 
 

10 QUARTERLY PLANNING PERFORMANCE - UPDATE REPORT (Pages 89 - 92) 
 
 Report attached. 

 
 
 
 

 
  Andrew Beesley 

Head of Democratic Services 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 
Council Chamber - Town Hall 

30 January 2020 (7.10  - 8.30 pm) 
 
Present: 
 
COUNCILLORS 8 
 
Conservative Group 
 

Dilip Patel (Chairman), Timothy Ryan (Vice-Chair), 
Ray Best and Maggie Themistocli 
 

Residents’ Group 
 

Reg Whitney 
 

Upminster & Cranham 
Residents’ Group 

Linda Hawthorn 

Independent Residents 
Group 

Graham Williamson 
 

Labour Group 
 

Keith Darvill 
 

 
 
Councillor Paul McGeary was also present at the meeting. 
 
There were about 20 members of the public present at the meeting. 
 
The Chairman reminded Members of the action to be taken in an emergency. 
 
 
46 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS  

 
There was no disclosure of interest at the meeting. 
 
 

47 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2020 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
 

48 P1039.19 - 90 NEW ROAD, RAINHAM  
 
The Committee considered the report and RESOLVED that PLANNING 
PERMISSION BE GRANTED subject to conditions, legal agreement and no 
contrary direction from the Mayor. 
 
In addition obligations within the 106 to include nomination rights for the 
affordable units and the need to submit a marketing strategy in regard to the 
non-affordable units so that they are advertised locally for an initial period. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Strategic Planning Committee, 30 January 
2020 

 

 

 

 
The voting was 5 to 3 abstentions: 
 
Councillors Patel, Best, Darvill, Ryan and Themistocli voted for the 
resolution. 
 
Councillors Hawthorn, Whitney and Williamson abstained from voting. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 2



Development Presentations 

Introduction 

1. This part of the agenda is for the committee to receive presentations on 

proposed developments, particularly when they are at the pre-application stage.  

2. Although the reports are set out in order on the agenda, the Chair may reorder 

the agenda on the night. Therefore, if you wish to be present for a specific 

application, you need to be at the meeting from the beginning. 

3. The following information and advice only applies to reports in this part of the 

agenda. 

Advice to Members 

4. These proposed developments are being reported to committee to enable 

Members of the committee to view them at an early stage and to comment 

upon them. They do not constitute applications for planning permission at this 

stage (unless otherwise stated in the individual report) and any comments 

made are provisional and subject to full consideration of any subsequent 

application and the comments received following consultation, publicity and 

notification.  

5. Members of the committee will need to pay careful attention to the probity rules 

around predisposition, predetermination and bias (set out in the Council’s 

Constitution). Failure to do so may mean that the Member will not be able to 

participate in the meeting when any subsequent application is considered. 

Public speaking and running order 

6. The Council’s Constitution only provides for public speaking rights for those 

applications being reported to Committee in the “Applications for Decision” 

parts of the agenda. Therefore, reports on this part of the agenda do not attract 

public speaking rights, save for Ward Members. 

7. The items on this part of the agenda will run as follows: 

a. Officer introduction of the main issues 

b. Developer presentation (15 minutes) 

c. Ward Councillor speaking slot (5 minutes) 

d. Committee questions 

e. Officer roundup 

 

 

 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



Late information 

8. Any relevant material received since the publication of this part of the agenda, 

concerning items on it, will be reported to the Committee in the Update Report. 

Recommendation 

9. The Committee is not required to make any decisions with respect to the 

reports on this part of the agenda. The reports are presented as background 

information. 

 
 

Page 4



 

Strategic Planning Committee 

 

27th February 2019 

 

 

Pre-Application Reference:  PE/00843/2019 

 

Location: SITES NR02/03 & NR06A/6B NEW ROAD, 

RAINHAM 

 

Ward:      SOUTH HORNCHURCH 

 

Description: RESIDENTIAL/COMMERCIAL 

DEVELOPMENT & RELOCATION OF 

SILVER HALL SOCIAL CLUB   

 

Case Officer:    WILLIAM ALLWOOD 

 

 

 

1 BACKGROUND  

  

1.1 This proposed development is being presented to enable Members of the 

Strategic Committee to view it before a planning application is submitted and 

to comment upon it. The development does not constitute an application for 

planning permission and any comments made upon it are provisional and 

subject to full consideration of any subsequent application and the comments 

received as a result of consultation, publicity and notification.  

 

1.2 These proposals have been the subject of discussions with Officers of the 

London Borough of Havering (LBH); meetings have taken place on the 14th 

October 2019, 22nd November 2019 and 12th February 2020, with further 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



meetings timetabled as part of a Planning Performance Agreement. The 

scheme has also been presented to the London Borough of Havering’s 

Quality Review Panel (QRP) on the 05th December 2019. 

 

1.3 The scheme(s) have continued to be developed following feedback from the 

pre-application meetings and the QRP. 

 

1.4 The pre-application enquiry is submitted by a Joint Venture comprising 

Notting Hill Group and Havering Borough Council as Rainham and Beam Park 

Regeneration LLP 

  

2         PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 

  

           Site and Surroundings  

 

2.1 The sites are located to the north side of New Road, Rainham. The sites are 

located within the Rainham Housing Zone as identified by the GLA and within 

a regeneration area as indicated within the Rainham and Beam Park Planning 

Framework 2016. 

 

2.2 Site NR06A is located at the junction of Betterton Road with 143 New Road, 

Rainham RM13 8ES 

 

2.3 Site NR06B is located at 149 – 153 New Road Rainham RM13 8SH 

 

 

2.4 Site NR02/03 is situated at 195 – 205 New Road and 1 – 9 Cherry Tree Lane, 

Rainham RM13 8SJ 

 

           Planning History 

 

2.5 Site NR06A was granted outline planning permission under reference 

P1239.17 for the demolition of all buildings, and for the erection of 35 

Page 6



residential dwellings and ancillary works on the 17th August 2018. At that time, 

the parameter plans indicated a maximum storey height of four storeys. 

 

2.6 Site NR06B was granted outline planning permission under reference 

P0726.17 for the demolition of all buildings, and for the erection of 14 

residential dwellings and ancillary works on the 12th October 2017. At that 

time, the parameter plans indicated a maximum storey height of four storeys. 

 

2.7 Site NR02/03 was granted outline planning permission under reference 

P1058.17 for the demolition of all buildings, and for the erection of 77 

residential dwellings and ancillary works on the 31st October 2017. At that 

time, the parameter plans indicated a maximum storey height of four storeys. 

 

Planning Policy  

 

2.8 National Planning Policy Framework 2018 

 London Plan 2016 

 Draft London Plan 2018  

London Borough of Havering Core Strategy and Development Control Policies 

DPD 2008  

 London Borough of Havering Proposed Submission Local Plan 2016 – 2031 

London Riverside Opportunity Area Planning Framework 2015 

 

3 MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

 

3.1 The main planning issues raised by the application that the Committee must 

consider are: 

  

 Principle of development 

 Density and Site Layout 

 High Quality Design 

 Housing provision, including affordable housing 

 Regeneration 

Page 7



 Permeability and highways matters   

 Relocation of existing Silver Hall Social Club  

 Mitigating flood risk 

 Archaeology 

 Microclimate 

 Sustainable Design and Construction 

 Secured by Design 

 Servicing Management 

 

3.2 Site NR06A has a PTAL rating of two and comprises various industrial/ office/ 

hard surfaced areas, with trees to the boundaries, at 143 New Road, Rainham 

within an area of 0.384 ha. The site is within Flood Zone 3. This site is also 

constrained by a surface water sewer and easement zone, together with a 

foul water sewer and easement zone. The current enquiry provides for up to 

25 dwellings with amenity areas, ancillary works, and ground floor commercial 

uses, with a height up to six storeys. This proposal also seeks to relocate the 

Silver Hall Social Club from an adjoining site, which is to be redeveloped as 

part of the Joint Venture programme. Currently the proposal is for the social 

club to be sited fronting onto New Road with parking area behind. The clud 

building would be single storey. 

 

3.3 Site NR06B has a PTAL rating of two and comprises existing housing at 149 – 

153 New Road, Rainham, within an area of 0.104 ha. The site is within Flood 

Zone 3. The site is constrained by site hazards, asbestos, ground 

contamination and unknown ground obstructions. The current enquiry 

provides for up to 23 dwellings with amenity areas and ancillary works, with a 

height up to five storeys fronting onto New Road. 

 

3.4 Site NR02/03 has a PTAL rating of 2 and comprises various industrial/ office/ 

hard surfaced areas with TPO trees at 195 and 205 New Road and 1-9 

Cherry Tree Lane, Rainham, within an area of 0.763 ha. The site is within 

Flood Zone 1. The site is constrained by site hazards, asbestos, ground 

contamination and unknown ground obstructions. The current enquiry 

Page 8



provides for up to 103 dwellings with amenity areas and ancillary works, with 

a six storeys apartment block, a four-storey link block, a four-storey 

maisonette block, and two storey dwellings with lofts. 

 

          Financial and Other Mitigation 

 

3.5 Any subsequent planning application will be supported by a package of 

measures secured under s106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or 

the Community Infrastructure Levy (as appropriate), to mitigate impacts of the 

proposed development . 

 

           Conclusions 

 

3.6 The proposed development has been considered recently at three pre-

application meetings with Officers at London Borough of Havering (LBH); the 

Quality Review Panel has also assessed the scheme. The evolution of the 

scheme detail is at a relatively early stage, but main parameters and details 

are starting to evolve. Further discussions will take place with Officers of LBH, 

in accordance with the agreed Planning Performance Agreement. 

 

3.7 It is likely that this scheme will come back to this Committee and the QRP for 

further review as part of the continuing pre-application engagement in the 

spring/ summer of 2020. 

 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Applications for Decision 

Introduction 

1. In this part of the agenda are reports on strategic planning applications for 

determination by the committee.  

2. Although the reports are set out in order on the agenda, the Chair may reorder 

the agenda on the night. Therefore, if you wish to be present for a specific 

application, you need to be at the meeting from the beginning. 

3. The following information and advice only applies to reports in this part of the 

agenda. 

Advice to Members 

Material planning considerations 

4. The Committee is required to consider planning applications against the 

development plan and other material planning considerations. 

5. The development plan for Havering comprises the following documents: 

 London Plan March 2016 

 Core Strategy and Development Control Policies (2008) 

 Site Allocations (2008) 

 Romford Area Action Plan (2008) 

 Joint Waste Development Plan (2012) 

6. Decisions must be taken in accordance with section 70(2) of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 and section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act 2004. Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

requires the Committee to have regard to the provisions of the Development 

Plan, so far as material to the application; any local finance considerations, so 

far as material to the application; and any other material considerations. 

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the 

Committee to make its determination in accordance with the Development Plan 

unless material planning considerations support a different decision being 

taken. 

7. Under Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990, in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 

which affects listed buildings or their settings, the local planning authority must 

have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its setting or 

any features of architectural or historic interest it possesses. 

8. Under Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 

Act 1990, in considering whether to grant planning permission for development 

Page 11

Agenda Item 7



which affects a conservation area, the local planning authority must pay special 

attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or 

appearance of the conservation area. 

9. Under Section 197 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in considering 

whether to grant planning permission for any development, the local planning 

authority must ensure, whenever it is appropriate, that adequate provision is 

made, by the imposition of conditions, for the preservation or planting of trees. 

10. In accordance with Article 35 of the Development Management Procedure 

Order 2015, Members are invited to agree the recommendations set out in the 

reports, which have been made based on the analysis of the scheme set out in 

each report. This analysis has been undertaken on the balance of the policies 

and any other material considerations set out in the individual reports. 

Non-material considerations 

11. Members are reminded that other areas of legislation cover many aspects of 

the development process and therefore do not need to be considered as part of 

determining a planning application. The most common examples are: 

 Building Regulations deal with structural integrity of buildings, the physical 

performance of buildings in terms of their consumption of energy, means of 

escape in case of fire, access to buildings by the Fire Brigade to fight fires 

etc. 

 Works within the highway are controlled by Highways Legislation. 

 Environmental Health covers a range of issues including public nuisance, 

food safety, licensing, pollution control etc. 

 Works on or close to the boundary are covered by the Party Wall Act. 

 Covenants and private rights over land are enforced separately from 

planning and should not be considered. 

Local financial considerations 

12. In accordance with Policy 6.5 of the London Plan (2015) the Mayor of London 

has introduced a London wide Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) to fund 

CrossRail. 

13. Other forms of necessary infrastructure (as defined in the CIL Regulations) and 

any mitigation of the development that is necessary will be secured through a 

section106 agreement. Where these are necessary, it will be explained and 

specified in the agenda reports. 

 

 

Page 12



Public speaking and running order 

14. The Council’s Constitution allows for public speaking on these items in 

accordance with the Constitution and the Chair’s discretion. 

15. The items on this part of the agenda will run as follows: 

a. Officer introduction of the development 

b. Registered Objector(s) speaking slot (5 minutes) 

c. Responding Applicant speaking slot (5 minutes) 

d. Councillor(s) speaking slots (5 minutes) 

e. Cabinet Member Speaking slot (5 minutes) 

f. Officer presentation of the material planning considerations 

g. Committee questions and debate 

h. Committee decision 

 

Late information 

16. Any relevant material received since the publication of this part of the agenda, 

concerning items on it, will be reported to the Committee in the Update Report. 

Recommendation 

17. The Committee to take any decisions recommended in the attached report(s). 

  

Page 13



 
 

Page 14



  

 

Strategic Planning 
Committee 

 

27th February 2020 

 

 

Application Reference: P0498.19 

 

Location: 22 – 44 North Street, Romford 

 

Ward Romford Town 

 

Description: Demolition of existing buildings on 
site and erection of a four to six storey 
development comprising 46 
residential units and 340sqm flexible 
commercial floor space at ground 
floor (Use Classes A1, A2, A3, B1(a) 
and D1), plus associated plant space, 
bin storage, cycle parking and 
external landscaping, including 
disabled parking 

 

Case Officer: William Allwood 

 

Reason for Report to Committee: The application is a Major proposal, 
and is considered a significant 
development, with heritage impacts.  

 

 

 

1 SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



 
1.1 The redevelopment of the site for residential development with ground floor 

commercial uses within the Romford Town Centre is acceptable in principle.  
 

1.2 The application is for the redevelopment of a two storey block of commercial 
units backing onto the Mews and the church yard to St Edward the Confessor’s 
Church – Grade II* listed building; the application site is also within the Romford 
Town Conservation Area. The proposal is for the Demolition of existing 
buildings on site and erection of a four to six storey development comprising 46 
residential units (30 x 1 bed, 12 x 2 bed and 4 x 3 bed) and 340sqm flexible 
commercial floor space at ground floor (Use Classes A1, A2, A3, B1 (a) and 
D1), plus associated plant space, bin storage, cycle parking and external 
landscaping, including disabled parking 
 

1.3 The application is submitted as a full application, providing details of the layout, 
form, scale and the various uses across the proposed development. The 
proposed density is within policy range and the layout is considered to be 
satisfactory and capable of providing a high quality development. 

1.4 The proposed height of the apartment blocks at up to 6 storeys is considered 
appropriate in context for this part of North Street. 

1.5 Members may recall considering the pre-application as part of a consultation 
exercise held at Strategic Planning Committee on the 08th November 2018. At 
that time, the initial proposed scheme ranged in height from 6 to 12 storeys, 
providing 95 residential units, and approximately 347 sq. m of commercial floor 
space.  The initial scheme proposed 62 private and 33 affordable residential 
units. 

1.6 Issues and comments following the meeting of the 08th November 2018 raised 
by Members of Strategic Planning Committee are included within the body of 
this Report. 

1.7 Further, the pre-application enquiry was referred to the independent Quality 
Review Panel (QRP) on the 04th February 2019. A summary of the QRP 
comments are included within this Report. 

1.8 Finally, a revised pre-application proposal scheme ranged in height from 6 to 9 
storeys, providing 77 residential units, and approximately 382 sq. m of 
commercial floor space. Again, issues and comments following the meeting of 
the 07th February 2019 raised by Members of Strategic Planning Committee 
are included within the body of this Report. 

1.9 The current scheme has now reduced the height of the scheme to six and four 
storeys, and on balance, is considered now to protect the setting of the Grade 
II* listed Church and Church Yard, and would preserve the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area. 

1.10 The recommended conditions would secure future policy compliance by the 
applicant at the site, and ensure any unacceptable development impacts are 
mitigated. 

Page 16



2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to 
conditions, to include key matters as set out below and the prior completion of 
a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) and all other enabling powers to secure the planning 
obligations at paragraph 2.2 below:  

2.2 That the Assistant Head of Planning is delegated authority to negotiate any 
subsequent legal agreement including that:  

a. Controlled Parking Zone contribution sum of £5,152  or such other figure 
as is approved by the Council: Indexed 
 

b. Carbon offset contribution sum of £56,700.68 or such other figure as 
approved by the Council: Indexed 

c. To provide training and recruitment scheme for the local workforce 
during construction period, in accordance with London Plan policy.  

d. To provide affordable housing in accordance with a scheme of 
implementation so that the overall level of affordable housing (by 
habitable rooms) is in accordance with the agreed Financial Viability 
position.    
 

e. Affordable Housing Review Mechanisms: early, and late stage reviews 
(any surplus shared 60:40 in favour of London Borough Havering) in 
accordance with the Mayor of London’s Affordable Housing and Viability 
SPG (2017) 

 

f. To implement or provide financial contribution to provision of  
environmental improvements to The Mews as shown on the plans 

 

g. Prevention of occupiers from obtaining on-street parking permits. 
 

 All contribution sums shall include interest to the due date of expenditure and 
all contribution sums to be subject to indexation from the date of completion of 
the Section 106 agreement to the date of receipt by the Council.  
 

 The Developer/Owner to pay the Council’s reasonable legal costs associated 
with the Legal Agreement prior to the completion of the agreement irrespective 
of whether the agreement is completed.  
 

 Payment of the appropriate planning obligations monitoring fee prior to the 
completion of the agreement. 

  2.3 That the Assistant Director of Planning is delegated authority to issue the 
planning permission and impose conditions and informatives to secure the 
following matters 

 

Page 17



 

 

 

 

 

Conditions 

1. Full application – commencement in 3-years 
2. Accordance with plans 
3. Details of Materials 
4. Car club management 
5. Details of Commercial Units 
6. Parking allocation and management plan 
7. Details of site levels  
8. Hard and Soft Landscaping 
9. Details of refuse and recycling storage 
10. Details of cycle storage 
11. Hours of construction 
12. Noise – new plant 
13. Noise Insulation (specific) 
14. Contamination – site investigation and remediation 
15. Contamination – if contamination subsequently discovered 
16. Electric charging points 
17. Construction methodology 
18. Construction Logistics and Deliveries/ Servicing Plan 
19. Air Quality – construction machinery 
20. Air Quality – demolition/construction dust control 
21. Air Quality – low nitrogen oxide boilers 
22. Details of boundaries  
23. Details of surfacing materials  
24. Car parking to be provided and retained 
25. Pedestrian visibility splays 
26. Vehicle access to be provided 
27. Wheel washing facilities during construction 
28. Details of drainage strategy, layout and SUDS 
29. Details of secure by design  
30. Secure by Design accreditation to be obtained 
31. Water efficiency 
32. Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings 
33. Archaeological investigation prior to commencement 
34. Bat/bird boxes to be provided 

 

Informatives 

1. Planning Obligations 

Page 18



2. Statement pursuant to Article 31 of the Development Management 
Procedure Order 

3. Fee for condition submissions 
4. Changes to public highway 
5. Highway legislation 
6. Temporary use of the highway 
7. Surface water management 
8. Community safety 
9. Street naming/numbering 
10. Protected species - bats 
11. Protected species  
12. Crime and disorder 
13. Thames Water comments 
14. Letter boxes 
 

2.4 In terms of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), the development will be 
liable to pay CIL when the development is built. In this regard, the London 
Mayoral CIL2 charging rate is £25 per sq. m. for all development, and the 
Havering CIL for this part of the Borough (introduced on the 01st September 
2019) is £125 per sq. m for residential development, and £50 per sq. m for the 
any retail use. 

2.5 It is therefore anticipated that the Mayoral CIL will be in the order of £102,325 
and the Havering CIL is £486,125 subject to indexation and any relief for 
affordable housing. 

3 PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 

 Proposal 

3.1 The application is submitted as a full application and is accompanied by a series 
of supporting documents, and has recently been subject to amendments to the 
scheme for the demolition of existing buildings on site and erection of a four to 
six storey development comprising 46 residential units (30 x 1 bed, 12 x 2 bed 
and 4 x 3 bed) within 2 no. separate blocks at six and four storey’s in height. 
The proposal provides for 2no. Duplex family affordable housing units, which 
results in a 7.1% affordable contribution by habitable room. 5no. of the units are 
wheelchair accessible to meet the 10% requirements of the London Plan 2016, 
and Building Regulations requirement M4 (3). The scheme also incorporates 
an element of commercial floor space (340 sq. m), with a loading bay, 5no. 
(including visitor, wheelchair accessible and Car Club spaces), together with 
84no. residential cycle spaces located either end of the building(s).  

3.2 The proposed residential development mix would be as follows:  

Unit Split  Number of Units  % Units  

1 Bed 1 Person 5  10.9  

1 Bed  2 Person 25  54.3  

Page 19



2 Bed  3 Person 8 17.4 

2 Bed  4 Person 4 8.7 

3 Bed  5 Person 

 

4 

 

8.7 

Total  46 100  

Floorspace (m² GEA)  

Commercial             340   

  

3.3 In terms of the disposition of the various uses throughout the building, the LPA 
advise the following: 

 Ground Floor  

 4no. 3-bedroom, 5 persons Duplex units with external amenity areas 
fronting onto the Mews, with access to the residential cores both from 
North Street and the corner of The Mews and the passageway 

 Parking areas and commercial loading bay facing The Mews 

 Commercial and retail units fronting North Street and the passageway 
between The Mews and North Street 

 Cycle store for 80no. spaces 

 Refuse areas 

First Floor 

 Upper floors to the 4no. Duplex units, with recessed balconies facing the 
Mews 

 1no. one –bedroom, one person unit with recessed balconies 

 5no. one –bedroom, two persons unit with recessed balconies 

 Plant room 

           Second and Third Floors  

 2no. one –bedroom, one person units with recessed balconies per floor 

 6no. one –bedroom, two persons units with recessed balconies per floor 

 2no. two –bedroom, three persons units with recessed balconies per 
floor 

 1no. two –bedroom, four persons unit with recessed balconies per floor 

           Fourth Floor 

 4no. one –bedroom, two persons unit with recessed balconies 

 2no. two –bedroom, three persons unit with recessed balconies 

 1no. two –bedroom, four persons unit with recessed balconies 

 Roof terrace measuring 274 sq. m, which provides a mixture of hard and 
soft landscaping, play space and outdoor furniture 

 Lift overrun and plant 

Page 20



           Fifth Floor 

 4no. one –bedroom, two persons unit with recessed balconies 

 2no. two –bedroom, three persons unit with recessed balconies 

 1no. two –bedroom, four persons unit with recessed balconies 

3.4 The proposed buildings would be flat roofed and appear as three main 
elements, each finished in contrasting brickwork. 

 

 Site and Surroundings 

3.5 The proposed site is located on the north-eastern side of North Street midway 
between the cross roads with the Market Place/High Street, and the roundabout 
on the ring road. The current building comprises a two-storey block of 
commercial units backing onto the Mews and the churchyard to St Edward the 
Confessor’s Church.  On the opposite side of North Street is the 8-storey 
Rubicon Court mixed use block together with the unfinished frame of a 
redevelopment of 23 – 55 North Street. A nightclub is located at first floor level. 
 

3.6  To the north on the same side of North Street up to the roundabout is the 
podium development of North House, comprising a single storey plinth with a 
12-storey office block. The site is located wholly within the Romford 
Conservation Area; St. Edward the Confessor Church - a Grade II* listed 
building - is located to the south east of the site. The site is highly accessible to 
public transport and other services; it is 500 metres (12 minutes’ walk) to the 
railway station and has a PTAL of 6a. 

 

Planning History 

3.7 The following planning decisions are relevant to the application: 
  

 Various applications relating to the night club use 
 

 In 2015, planning permission was refused on the southern part of the site at 22 
– 28 North Street The demolition of 4 shops and offices over and the erection 
of an 8 storey mixed development with 4 No ground floor shops (A1 and A3), 
28 flats above (24 No 2 Bed and 4 no 1 bed) together with private balconies 
and terraces, communal storage, roof mounted photo-voltaic cells, bulkhead 
lighting to adjacent pavements, associated pavement improvements and 
improvements to the rear facade of 30-44 North Street (reference P1528.13) 

   
3.8     That application was refused for the following reasons: 

 
 Given the piecemeal nature of the development, and the loss of existing 

buildings which positively contribute to the conservation area, the setting of 
Grade II* listed church and wider street scene, the replacement scheme by 
way of its significant height, bulk, and massing would result in significant 
harm to heritage assets and incongruous to the established character locally 

Page 21



 The proposed residential access was considered substandard being located 
in a back-street location, lacking legibility to pedestrians, would contribute 
to an unacceptable standard of residential accommodation 

 The proposed development failed to delivered appropriate planning 
obligations 

 
4 CONSULTATION RESPONSE 

4.1 The views of the Planning Service are expressed in the MATERIAL PLANNING 
CONSIDERATIONS section below. 

4.2 The following were consulted regarding the application; further, the consultees 
have been advised of the amended proposals to reduce the height of the 
building to six and four storeys, and any further comments will be reported to 
Strategic Planning Committee: 

4.3 British Pipelines Agency - No objections 

4.4 Thames Water – No objections, subject to informatives about surface water 
drainage, underground waste water assets and public sewers  

4.5 Metropolitan Police (Designing Out Crime) – Requested conditions regarding 
designing out crime 

4.6 LBH, Environmental Protection (Noise and Vibration) – No objections, subject 
to necessary mitigation works 

4.7 LBH, Environmental Protection (Contamination) – No objections, subject to 
conditions, remediation and necessary mitigation works 

4.8 LBH, Environmental Protection (Air Quality) – No objections, subject to 
conditions 

4.9 LBH Waste and Recycling – No objections to the delivery of refuse storage and 
collection for the residential element; a separate commercial waste collection 
contract will be required for the proposed businesses  

4.10 LBH School Organisation – No objections, subject to appropriate CIL education 
contributions 

4.11 LBH Flood & Rivers Management Officer – No objections in principal, subject 
to condition 

4.12 Inspector of Historic Buildings and Areas, Historic England – NOTE: These 
comments relate to the application as originally submitted. Historic England 
welcomes the reduction in height of the proposed development at 22- 44 North 
Street. However, we maintain that some harm would result from these 
proposals. It will be for your Council to consider the harm we have identified 
within the context of the policies set out in the attached pre-application advice 
letter in coming to a decision. Whilst Historic England has a remit to comment 
on historic environment issues at a national level, you should also take account 
of the comments provided by your Historic Buildings Consultant, who will be 
providing more detailed advice on the impacts on heritage assets at a local 

Page 22



level. These comments relate to the proposal as submitted (part 9/part 6 
storey). Historic England have been advised of the amended proposals to 
reduce the scale of the building to six and four storeys, but it is not expected 
that they would respond. The views of the Council’s Historic Buildings 
Consultant are incorporated in the main body of the report (paragraphs 6.14 to 
6.25). 

 

4.13 Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service, Historic England – No 
objections, subject to conditions 

4.14 London Fire Brigade – Confirm that it will be not be necessary to install any 
additional fire hydrants 

4.15 LBH Highways – No objections, subject to conditions on cycle storage, highway 
works and vehicle cleansing, a legal agreement to secure restrictions on 
parking permits and informatives on changes to the public highway and surface 
water management 

4.16 Cadent Gas Ltd. – advise that they have operational gas apparatus within the 
applicant site boundary and therefore an informative will be added to any 
planning approval 

5 LOCAL REPRESENTATION 

5.1 A total of 151 neighbouring residential and commercial properties were notified 
about the application and invited to comment. The application has been 
publicised by way of site notice displayed in the vicinity of the application site. 
The application has also been publicised in the local press. Further, 
neighbouring properties and Ward Members have been reconsulted, following 
the recent receipt of amended plans to reduce the height of the building to six 
and four storeys. Any further comments will be reported to SPC. 

15 No. of individual responses, both in terms of support and objections from 
local residents: 

Representations – Support 

 An excellent idea; there is a shortage of housing and profitable retail and 
leisure space 

 Good bit of regeneration for North Street. More opportunities to get on 
the housing ladder. Looks good. Happy with scheme 

 Will improve North Street visually 

Representations – Object 

 Unacceptable bulk height and mass which will visually impact on setting 
of nearby church and church yard, historic crossroads , golden lion pub 
and conservation area 

 The loss of existing businesses will not help the local economy 

 Lack of consultation at the pre-application stage 

 Impact upon infrastructure including GPs and dentists 

Page 23



 The proposed demolition and rebuild is not in the interest of the local 
community and will devastate the local business. 

 Impacts upon biodiversity 

 Romford Civic Society, originally made the following representations: 
Objects strongly to this application on the following grounds:  

- It is a fragrant breach of planning policy, proposing the 
demolition of a building identified as making a positive 
contribution to Romford Conservation Area in the borough's 
Conservation Area Appraisal for Romford Conservation Area and 
policy is clear that buildings which are identified as making a 
positive contribution to a conservation area should not be 
demolished.  
-  The proposal would also be detrimental to the setting of the 
Golden Lion Inn, and to views in the location of the High Street/ 
North Street/the Market. Further, the proposal would be 
detrimental to the Conservation Area 
-  The proposal contains an imbalance between one bedroom and 
two and three bedroom properties, and therefore not meeting 
housing need 
-  Does not meet London Plan policy in seeking that residential 
developments be zero carbon emission rated 

 The Civic Society have also made further comment in January 
2020, where they reiterate their concerns over the scheme 

 Councillor Judith Holt ( Councillor Holt is the Member Champion 
for the Historic Environment and Romford Town Ward Member), 
advised the following: 
- The smallest corner block is just about acceptable, the larger 
two blocks are too high, the wrong colours and simply not 
sympathetic with St. Edward’s Church and the churchyard.  In 
addition, the view of the church is scarcely better and I have 
concerns about the lack of parking for the development. 
 

6  MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 

6.1 The main planning issues raised by the application that the committee must 
consider are: 

 Principle of Development 

 Strategic Planning Committee Feedback/ Quality Review Panel Responses 

 Density/Site Layout 

 Impact upon the setting of heritage assets, including the Grade II* listed 
church, the Grade I listed Golden Lion Public House, locally listed buildings 
and the character and appearance of the Romford Conservation Area 

 Impact on Amenity 

 Highway/Parking 

 Affordable Housing/Mix and Viability 

 School Places and Other Contributions 

 Sustainability and Energy 

Page 24



Principal of Development 

6.2 In terms of national planning policies, the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 (NPPF) sets out the overarching roles that the planning system ought to 
play, including a set of core land-use planning principles that should underpin 
decision-taking, one of those principles being: 

“Planning decisions should promote an effective use of land in meeting the 
need for homes.” Para 117 

“Planning decisions should give substantial weight to the value of using suitable 
brownfield land within settlements for homes.” Para 118 

6.3 Policies within the London Plan seek to increase and optimise housing in 
London, in particular Policy 3.3 on ‘Increasing Housing Supply’ and Policy 3.4 
on ‘Optimising Housing Potential’. 

6.4 Policy CP1 of the LDF on ‘Housing Supply’ expresses the need for a minimum 
of 535 new homes to be built in Havering each year through prioritising the 
development of brownfield land and ensuring it is used efficiently. Table 3.1 of 
the London Plan supersedes the above target and increases it to a minimum 
ten-year target for Havering (2015-2025) of 11,701 new homes or 1,170 new 
homes each year.  Policy 3 in the draft Havering Local Plan sets a target of 
delivering 17,550 homes over the 15-year plan period. Ensuring an adequate 
housing supply to meet local and sub-regional housing need is important in 
making Havering a place where people want to live and where local people are 
able to stay and prosper. 

6.5 The aspiration for a residential-led redevelopment seeking to regenerate this 
part of Romford Town Centre is supported. 

6.6 In view of the above, the Local Planning Authority raise no in principle objection 
to a residential-led development coming forward on this, in accordance with the 
policies cited above. 

Strategic Planning Committee (SPC) Feedback – November 2018 

6.7 Members of the Strategic Planning Committee may recall providing feedback 
to the Pre-Application scheme at 22 - 44 North Street Romford on the 08th 
November 2018. At that time, the scheme ranged in height from six to twelve 
storeys, and provided for 95 residential units, and approximately 373 sq. m of 
commercial floor space.  In this regard, Members raised the following issues:   

 

 Whether comparison to buildings nearby which are outside of the 
Conservation Area is disingenuous 

 What the justification is for the proposed height, why do high? 

 Density of scheme.  Why so high and dense? 

 Consultation with the Church.  What consultation has been undertaken?  
This should include the Civic Society  

 The principle of the car club was welcomed 

 The developer was invited to engage in the Romford Masterplan process 

Page 25



Havering Quality Review Panel – February 2019 

6.8 On the 04th February 2019, the independent London Borough of Havering 
Quality Review Panel met to discuss the proposal at pre-application stage. At 
this time the proposal was for a part 9, part 6 storey building providing 77 
dwellings and commercial on the ground floor. The conclusions of the QRP 
were summarised as follows: 

 The panel recognises that the scheme’s context is challenging, sitting 
within a fragile and historic part of Romford’s centre that has been 
degraded over a long period. There is a duty to seek to make a positive 
contribution the conservation area here, not simply to do no harm.  

 Critical to the success of the scheme will be getting the ground floor 
layout and uses right and improving the quality of the environment in The 
Mews to make an attractive link to the churchyard, central Romford’s 
only significant green space. 

 The panel is concerned that the heights and massing proposed will have 
a negative impact on key views within Romford, notably from the Market 
Place towards the church and from the crossroads northwards along 
North Street.  

 Given the sensitivity of the site, the panel feels that the scheme should 
as far as possible preserve the existing scale within the conservation 
area. The panel is also unconvinced by the case for creating three 
distinct elements along North Street, differing in height, brick colour, and 
façade alignment.  

 While the work to assess the local architectural character is appreciated, 
the panel feels that currently the character of the elevations presented 
reflects the ‘New London Vernacular’ rather than anything distinctive to 
Romford and it urges the design team to continue to finesse the 
architectural expression of the scheme, to respond more specifically to 
its context.  

 The panel is also concerned by the high proportion of single aspect 
residential units within the scheme and would like to see this revisited. 
Finally, the panel feels that the quality of the amenity space proposed, 
including the green rooftop, has not yet reached an adequate standard. 

Strategic Planning Committee (SPC) Feedback – February 2019 

6.9 Further, Members of the Strategic Planning Committee may recall providing 
feedback to the Pre-Application scheme at 22 - 44 North Street Romford on the 
07th February 2019. At that time, the revised scheme ranged in height from six 
to nine storeys, providing 77 residential units, and approximately 382 sq. m of 
commercial floor space.  In this regard, Members raised the following issues:   

  

 Height reduction welcomed. 

 Affordable Housing: need to understand the basis of the offer and the trade-
offs being made (height vs. unit numbers vs. viability, HO choice of words) 

 Parking: need to understand the basis the car parking proposals in more 
detail.  What is the anticipated level of demand for parking? 

 The submission should demonstrate why the proposals would not dominate 
the Church or the Market Place  

Page 26



 Quality of tree planting and public realm to the rear of the site is really 
important 

Density/Site Layout 

6.10 As advised, the proposed scheme has been revised to take account of 
comments raised by the Quality Review Panel, Members of the Strategic 
Planning Committee and Officers of the Council.  

6.11 To summarise, the changes between the submitted scheme are as follows : 

  

 Height – the revised substitution scheme is four to six stories in height 
rather than six to nine as originally submitted. 
 

 Balconies – the original submission scheme included recessed 
balconies along North Street and projecting balconies along The Mews, 
while the substitution scheme features only recessed balconies 

 

 Mix – due to the loss of area on a typical floor brought about by the switch 
to recessed balconies, as well as the reduction in height, the mix of 
dwelling sizes has changed slightly. Whereas the original submission 
scheme included 63.5% 1 bed, 31.1% 2 bed and 5.4% 3 bed homes, the 
revised scheme has 65.2% 1 bed, 26.1% 2 bed and 8.7% 3 bed homes. 

 

 Number of dwellings – the reduction in height has resulted in a loss of 
dwellings, from 74 in the original submission scheme down to 46 in the 
revised substitution scheme.  

 

 Density – with the reduction in dwellings, the density has similarly fallen 
from 1150 HR/Ha to 762 HR/Ha.  

 
6.12 The comparison between original and revised elevations in the context of North 

Street show how clearly the reduction in height changes the relationships 
between the proposed building and the neighbouring buildings. It is similar to 
or lower than buildings on the opposite side of the churchyard, and half the 
height of North House.  

6.13 The general layout plan of the proposed buildings would fall in accordance with 
Policy DC61 of the London Borough of Havering LDF 2008 and the LB of 
Havering Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document 2010.  

Impact upon the setting of heritage assets, including the Grade II* listed 
church, and the character and appearance of the Romford Conservation 
Area 

Site Context 

6.14 The site of the proposal is within the Romford Conservation Area, which is 
included within Historic England’s Heritage at Risk Register having been 
identified as being in ‘Very Bad’ condition. Section 72 of the Planning (Listed 

Page 27



Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that in the exercise, with 
respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, special attention 
shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or 
appearance of that area. At present the site is occupied by Nos.22-44 (evens) 
North Street - two adjoining 1920/30s blocks of two-storey, constructed of brick 
with retail units at ground floor. Within the adopted Conservation Area 
Appraisal, Nos.22-26 North Street are identified as making a positive 
contribution to the area and Nos.28-44 as making as neutral contribution. The 
two blocks are representative of their period in Romford’s retail history and 
display a number of good details. The buildings are at present under occupied 
and have been subjected to a number of unfavourable alterations to both the 
front and rear. Whilst regrettable, it is accepted that the demolition of these 
blocks may be acceptable in principle subject to a high-quality scheme, which 
will enhance this part of the Conservation Area, which has been subjected to 
numerous poor-quality redevelopment schemes during the late twentieth and 
earlier twenty-first centuries. 

 
6.15 Directly to the east of the site is the Grade II* Parish Church of St Edward the 

Confessor built 1849-50 by John Johnson, replacing an earlier Chapel 
consecrated in 1410. Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states that in considering whether to grant 
planning permission for development which affects a listed building or its 
setting, the local planning authority shall have special regard to the desirability 
of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural 
or historic interest which it possesses. The church is the only Grade II* listed 
building within the Conservation Area and is an important landmark, 
demarcating within the wider landscape what has been the settlements core 
since Romford received permission to hold a market in 1247. It is important to 
recognise the value of differing scales when considering views of the church 
from longer-distance views, which denote the position of the medieval core 
within a wider landscape to more intimate views from within the Conservation 
Area. The most significant surviving viewpoints of the church are considered to 
be those intimate views from the churchyards to the front and rear, a range of 
short-distance views from Market Place and North Street together with medium 
distance views from the outer peripheries of Market Place, North Street, High 
Street and South Street as well as longer distance views from South Street and 
on principle routes towards the core from beyond the ring road.  

 
6.16 Immediately to the north of the Church is the associated churchyard which was 

laid out c.1950 as a public garden – this involved relocating headstones to the 
edges of the churchyard with some being used to form a path. The 
Churchyard’s character is of a private and tranquil space, which is in sharp 
contrast to that of the Market Place. As the only ‘greenspace’, this area makes 
an invaluable contribution to the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area as well providing a positive setting of the Grade II* Church. The value of 
this space is further recognised by its inclusion with the London Parks and 
Gardens Trust’s Inventory of Historic Green Spaces. 

 
6.17 To the south of the application site is the historic crossroads where Market 

Place, North Street, South Street and High Street converge. When designated 

Page 28



in 1968, the special interest of the Conservation Area was defined as “a group 
of old buildings at the western end of the Market Place and the site of an ancient 
crossroads” … and that … “although composed of buildings of widely differing 
styles, the group is unified by its domestic scale and its relationship to and 
enclosure of the west end of the Market Place”. Church House, The Lamb 
Public House and The Golden Lion Public House are Grade II listed (HE Ref: 
1079903, 1183878 and 1358531 respectively) whilst The Prudential Building, 
Lloyds Bank and The Co-Op Bank are included on Havering Local List. The 
historic crossroads is a highly significant area within the Conservation Area. 

 
6.18 North House, to the north of the application site, is an eleven-storey late 

twentieth century office block above a single-storey podium providing retail 
accommodation. This building makes a negative contribution to the character 
and appearance of the Conservation Area and visually intrudes into the setting 
of the Grade II* listed church and graveyard. Directly opposite the application 
site is an eight-storey residential block known as Rubicon Court, adjoined to the 
north by a partially constructed part four, part eight and part sixteen storey 
building (though works have halted for a prolonged period and it is considered 
that an earlier planning permission granted at appeal for a building up to 16 
storeys in height has lapsed). 

  
6.19 Whilst Nos.22-26 North Street make a positive contribution to the area, they 

were not considered important or integral to the character or appearance of the 
Conservation Area as a whole. As such, it was assessed, the harm would be 
‘less than substantial’ rather than ‘substantial’ in accordance with National 
Planning Policy. 

6.20 It is considered that the proposal displays architectural merit, with the detailing 
of the southernmost block picking up on brick detailing found on late nineteenth 
and early twentieth century elements within the Conservation Area. The 
treatment of the building at street level also displays a number of high-quality 
details informed by context though in a contemporary manner. The applicant 
has also sought to use the development as an opportunity for place making with 
a chamfer on the southernmost block to allow for glimpsed views of the church 
from North Street and promote this as a pedestrian route to The Mews. To the 
rear, the applicant has extended their proposal beyond the red-line boundary 
to enhance the wider street scape. It is understood that this would be achieved 
through a financial contribution to the local planning authority. With regards to 
landscaping and public realm, the use of active frontages to The Mews and 
contribution to streetscape is considered favourably and there would certainly 
be improvements upon what exists at present. 

6.21 The key concerns highlighted previously in relation to design and conservation 
matters were regarding the height of the blocks and the presence of projecting 
balconies.  

6.22 The transition from the neighbouring three-storey block to six stories or then 
onwards to nine was considered too severe whilst the two nine-storey blocks 
would have read as a single mass despite the use of different bricks. Due to the 
closeness of this viewpoint, there would have been little differentiation in 

Page 29



perceived mass of these nine-storey blocks from the churchyard when 
compared to the eleven-storey North House – this was demonstrated by the 
verified views. The proposed would have had profound negative impact upon 
the quality of this space by greatly increasing the prominence of tall urban built 
forms into the graveyard, consequentially giving a strong sense of urban 
enclosure and overlooking. The use of projecting balconies to the rear also 
cluttered the elevation and accentuated the buildings prominence and the 
sense of being overlooked within a previously and tranquil private space of the 
graveyard. 

6.23 As a result of feedback from officers on the originally submitted proposal, the 
applicant has reduced the height of the proposal from six and nine stories to 
four and six, together with removing projecting balconies. The reduction in 
height has had a significant impact upon the visual prominence of the proposal 
with a much more successful transition in massing from the neighbouring three-
storey block to a high point of six stories which is markedly differentiated from 
North House. Whilst there would remain a sense of urban enclosure and 
overlooking, the reduced massing together with the omission of projecting 
balconies has lessened this impact. One negative impact, which remains 
unchanged, is the loss of a key-view from North Street, across the application 
site, to the spire of the Parish Church of St Edward the Confessor. 

 Conclusion 

6.24 The proposed scheme would undoubtedly cause a degree of harm to the 
conservation area by contributing to a sense of urban enclosure and 
overlooking to the churchyard together with the loss of a positive contributor - 
though this is significantly less than would arise with the previous iteration. 
There would also be harm to the Grade II* Church through the loss of a key 
view and impact upon the character of its churchyard setting. With regards to 
the National Planning Policy Framework (2019), the level of harm to these 
heritage assets is in each instance is considered less than substantial. As such, 
the local planning authority should weigh this harm against any public benefits 
of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use 
(Para.196). 

6.25 It is acknowledged that the proposal is of architectural merit and in design terms 
represents a high-quality intervention within the Conservation Area, which has 
in recent years been subjected to numerous low-quality modern interventions. 
There are also a number of heritage benefits associated with the scheme 
including streetscape enhancements beyond the red-line boundary. 

Impact on Amenity 

6.26 The distances to neighbouring properties all far exceed recommended 
minimum separation distances with the closest distance to north side of New 
Road. This indicates that there will be no impact on the privacy of existing 
residences. The layouts of the flats and the distances between the block to 
adjoining residential content at Rubicon Court have been designed to maximise 
on privacy and avoid overlooking issues. 

Page 30



6.27 The proposed residential units have been designed to comply with the National 
Minimum Internal Space Standards and the Mayor of London’s Housing Design 
Standards as set out in the Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance (March 
2016). 90% of the proposed units comply with Building Regulation M4 (2) for 
accessible and adaptable dwellings, and 10% comply with Building Regulation 
M4 (3) for wheelchair user dwellings. 

6.28 Officers have further reviewed the external space provided with the proposed 
development, and the revised plans show both private and communal amenity 
space for its occupants which appear to be sufficient and in accordance with 
the Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document Policy PG20 on 
Housing Design, and Policy DC61 of the London Borough of Havering LDF 
2008. 

6.29 Further, and from a crime design perspective, the proposal would present a 
layout that offers good natural surveillance to all public and private open space 
areas.  The proposal would accord Policy 3.5 of the London Plan on Quality 
and Design of Housing Developments and Policy 7.1 on Lifetime 
neighbourhoods and Policy 7.3 on Designing Out Crime, as well as Policy DC63 
of the LDF on Delivering Safer Places. 

6.30 From a noise and disturbance perspective, the applicant has submitted a Noise 
Assessment, Contamination and Air Quality reports, which reaffirms that both 
residents from within and outside the proposal would not be affected by 
unacceptable levels of noise or air pollution arising from the development.  The 
Councils Public Protection Officers have reviewed the submitted reports and 
concluded that the scheme (subject to conditions imposed) would be compliant 
with Policy DC52 on Air Quality, Policy DC55 on Noise and CP15 on 
Contaminated Land, subject to the introduction of appropriate planning 
conditions. 

6.31 The LPA have reviewed the proposed waste storage areas catering the 
apartments and the ground floor commercial properties, which will be serviced 
via The Mews to the north and the service road.   As it stands, there are no 
overriding concerns with this arrangement as scheme demonstrates a 
convenient, safe and accessible solution to waste collection in keeping to 
guidance within Policy DC40 of the LDF on Waste Recycling. 

 Highway/Parking 

6.32 The application site within an area with PTAL of 6a (excellent accessibility), with 
good access to bus services and a 12 minute walk time to the Romford Train 
Station. 10% of the car parking spaces will be wheelchair accessible, which is 
in accordance with the provisions of London Plan 2016.  

6.33 The Council is seeking to implement a Controlled Parking Zone near the 
proposed development site. The applicant has therefore developed an 
approach to car parking provision and management on the assumption that the 
proposed developments will need to be “self-sufficient” in respect of its car 
parking provision and it is envisaged that residents occupying the 
developments (save for blue badge holders) will not be eligible to apply for car 
parking permits within the CPZ. 

Page 31



6.34 In terms of affordable rent units, car parking spaces allocated to affordable units 
will be located in the proximity of these units and be specifically allocated for 
use by this tenure 

6.30 The applicant has submitted a Transport Statement as part of this application 
and the Highways Authority have reviewed the document and consider the 
development acceptable from a highway perspective and unlikely to give rise 
to undue highway safety or efficiency implications in accordance with Policy 
DC32 The Road Network of the LDF. 

6.31 The Councils Highways Engineer has further reviewed all other highways 
related matters such as access and parking and raises no objections subject to 
the imposition of conditions (covering pedestrian visibility, vehicle access and 
vehicle cleansing during construction), financial contribution to Controlled 
Parking Zone and limitation on future occupiers from obtaining any permits in 
any future zone.   

6.32 The London Fire Brigade has raised no objection in principle. 

 Affordable Housing/Mix and Viability 

6.33 Policy DC6 of the LDF 2008 and Policies 3.9, 3.11 and 3.12 of the London Plan 
2016 seek to maximise affordable housing in major development proposals. 
The Mayor of London Supplementary Planning Guidance “Homes for 
Londoners” sets out that where developments propose 35% or more of the 
development to be affordable at an agreed tenure split, then the viability of the 
development need not be tested – in effect it is accepted that 35% or more is 
the maximum that can be achieved.  

6.34 In this respect, the applicant has submitted a Financial Viability Appraisal, which 
has been independently assessed by specialists on behalf of the Local Planning 
Authority. The applicant’s position is that proposal would not support the 
provision of affordable housing; the Council’s own independent specialists have 
verified this position. However, paragraph 64 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework 2019 requires 10% affordable home ownership should be provided 
on site, regardless of the viability position. In this regard, the applicant is offering 
two, 3-bedroom 5 person’s Duplex units as affordable housing; whilst this 
represents only 7.1% affordable units by habitable room, the Local Planning 
Authority agree with this approach given the agreed viability position.  

6.35 However, and having reported the currently reported viability position, the 
Mayor of London Affordable Housing and Viability SPG 2017 seeks to maximise 
affordable housing delivery in the longer term and acknowledging the potential 
for significant changes in values in the housing market. Review mechanisms 
provide a reappraisal mechanism to ensure that maximum public benefit is 
secured over the period of a development and can encourage the build out of 
schemes. These mechanisms recognise the need to maximise affordable 
housing provision and address the economic uncertainties, which may arise 
over the lifetime of a development proposal. They allow increases in Section 
106 contributions to reflect changes in the value of a development from the date 
of planning permission to specific stages of the development programme. Such 
approaches are intended to support effective and equitable implementation of 

Page 32



planning policy while also providing flexibility to address viability concerns such 
as those arising from market uncertainty. 

6.36 Early reviews for Viability Tested Route schemes also consider market changes 
in Gross Development Value and build costs between the point of planning 
permission and the point of the review. The estimated Gross Development 
Value and build costs submitted as part of the original planning application will 
be compared against an updated scheme valuation and elemental cost plan. 
Viability Tested schemes should be subject to late reviews which will be applied 
once 75 per cent of homes are sold, or at a point agreed by the Local Planning 
Authority. The benefit of this approach is that the review can be based on values 
achieved and costs incurred. The review takes place prior to sale of the whole 
development to ensure that the review and any additional contribution arising 
from this are enforceable. The outcome of this review will typically be a financial 
contribution towards off-site affordable housing provision. Such Mayoral 
Review mechanisms will be secured by way of a Section 106 Agreement. 

 Drainage and Flood Risk 

6.37 The proposal is for residential and commercial use within Flood Zone 1 as 
defined by the Environment Agency. The applicant addresses Drainage and 
Sustainable (SuDS) in the Planning Statement, and as no issue relating to flood 
risk was identified on site, and as the site is currently wholly development with 
no current SuDS, that the development would deliver a net improvement to 
surface water flood risk. In any event, the suggest entering into discussions with 
the Council during the determination of the planning application, should further 
SuDS measures be required, and suggest any SuDS measures could be 
specified through a condition. 

6.38 The London Borough of Havering Flood and Water Manager agrees within this 
approach. 

CIL and S106 Contributions 

6.39 Policy DC72 of the LDF emphasises that in order to comply with the principles 
as set out in several of the Policies in the Plan, contributions may be sought 
and secured through a Planning Obligation. Policy 8.2 of the London Plan 
states that development proposals should address strategic as well as local 
priorities in planning obligations. 

6.40 In this case, an Education contribution would be not sought should the planning 
permission be granted, as Havering CIL would cover school places funding. It 
is therefore anticipated that the Mayoral CIL will be in the order of £102,325 
and the Havering CIL is £486,125 and this could cover educational provision 
arising out of the development. 

6.41 Provision of the environmental improvements, either by the developer or 
through financial contribution, is considered necessary to provide an 
acceptable appearance and residential amenity to this current poor quality back 
of building environment. 

6.42 Contribution to any future CPZ is also required given the limited parking 
provided for the proposed development. 

Page 33



   Sustainability and Energy  

6.43 To mitigate to climate change and minimise emissions of carbon dioxide, when 
considering planning applications the Mayor of London, in accordance with 
London Plan Policies 5.2 and 5.3, will assess the use of sustainable design and 
construction measures. Specifically, London Plan (2016) Policy 5.2 requires 
new residential buildings to achieve zero carbon standards by October 2016. 

6.44 The proposal is accompanied by an Energy Statement.  The reports outline an 
onsite reduction in carbon emissions by 35%, to include a photovoltaic strategy, 
which aims to further reduce CO2 emissions across the entire site. In assessing 
the baseline energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions for the site, a 
financial contribution of £56,700.68 has been calculated as carbon emissions 
offset contribution in lieu of on-site carbon reduction measures. The 
development proposal, subject to contributions being sought would comply with 
Policy 5.2 of the London Plan. 

6.45 The non-residential units have been designed to achieve BREEAM ‘Very         
Good’, in accordance with LBH Core Strategy and Development Control Policy 
DC49. London Plan (2016) Policy 5.15 requires new residential development 
to be designed so that mains water consumption is less than 105 litres per day 
per head and the proposed development would conform to this policy 
requirement. 

 Financial and Other Mitigation 

6.46 The proposal would attract the following section 106 contributions: 

 Sum of £5,152.00, or such other figure as is approved by the Council,  
towards CPZ in streets in the vicinity of the application site 

 Sum of £56,700.68 or such other figure as is approved by the Council,  
towards the Council’s Carbon Offset Fund 

 To provide training and recruitment scheme for the local workforce during 
construction period, in accordance with London Plan policy.  

 To provide affordable housing in accordance with a scheme of 
implementation so that the overall level of affordable housing (by habitable 
rooms) is in accordance with the agreed Financial Viability position.  

 Affordable Housing Review Mechanisms: early, and late stage reviews (any 
surplus shared 60:40 in favour of London Borough Havering) in accordance 
with the Mayor of London’s Affordable Housing and Viability SPG (2017) 

 Environmental Improvements contribution should the developer not be able 
to carry out the necessary works to The Mews 

6.47 The proposal would also attract Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
and the London Borough of Havering CIL contributions to mitigate the impact 
of the development.  

6.48 There is potential that the existing buildings may provide habitat for protected 
species. Otherwise there is no biodiversity interest in the site. Suitable 
conditions are recommended. 

Page 34



6.49 As advised within the Consultee Responses section of the Report, relevant 
Informatives would be appended.  

6.50 Suitable planning conditions are recommended to ensure remediation of the 
site. 

Conclusions 

6.51 All other relevant policies and considerations have been taken into account. 
Planning permission should be granted subject to the conditions outlined above 
for the reasons set out above. The details of the decision are set out in the 
RECOMMENDATION. 

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Strategic Planning 
Committee 
27 February  2020 

 

 

Application Reference: P1604.17 
 

Location: 148 - 192 New Road, Rainham 
 

Ward South Hornchurch 
 

Description: Outline planning application for the 
demolition of all buildings and 
redevelopment of the site for 
residential use providing up to 239 
units with ancillary car parking, 
landscaping and access 
 

Case Officer: William Allwood 
 

Reason for Report to Committee: The application is by or on behalf of a 
Joint Venture that includes the 
Council and is a significant 
development. The Local Planning 
Authority is considering the 
application in its capacity as local 
planning authority and without regard 
to the identity of the Applicant.   

 

 
 
1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Members may recall discussing the above-mentioned planning application at 

the Strategic Planning Committee on the 19th December 2019, where the 

application was deferred to enable: 

 An updated report to be brought to back to committee containing a 
summary and assessment of the late representations received  
 

 Full wording of the suggested conditions  
 

1.2 Officers would remind Members that the application is submitted in outline 
with all matters reserved for future approval. Further, the London Borough of 
Havering Public Protection Officer (Noise) does not object to the outline 
planning application, subject to the introduction of appropriate planning 

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



conditions to mitigate the impact of the development from the known noise 
source at Rainham Steel Company Limited to the south.  

 
1.3 It may also help Members that the Local Planning Authority has undertaken a 

quick search of relevant outline planning applications elsewhere in England, 
where housing is being proposed adjoining an existing commercial/ industrial 
noise source.  Whilst not knowing the full details of other schemes, there are 
occasions where outline-planning applications have been approved on the 
basis of parameter plans, and subject to conditions that more detailed noise 
assessments would be submitted with any subsequent reserved matters 
application.   

 
1.4 As Members may recall, there were two late representations received in 

advance of the Strategic Planning Committee on behalf of the objector at 
Rainham Steel; in this respect, the Local Planning Authority received a letter 
from Penningtons Manches Coopers LLP (the Penningtons letter) on the 17th 
December 2019, and an e-mail from MZA Acoustics on the day of the 
Strategic Planning Committee on the 19th December 2019. 

 
1.5 This Report will therefore deal with an assessment of the later representations 

received in December 2019, and in addition, provide Members with a full list 
of planning conditions. The report originally presented at 19th December 
committee is appended to this report with amendments as suggested in 
Section 4 of this additional report. 

 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to 

conditions, to include key matters as set out below:  
 
2.2 That the Assistant Head of Planning is delegated authority to negotiate any 

subsequent legal agreement required to secure compliance with Condition 39  
below, including that:  

 

 All contribution sums shall include interest to the due date of expenditure and 
all contribution sums to be subject to indexation from the date of completion of 
the Section 106 agreement to the date of receipt by the Council.  
 

 The Developer/Owner to pay the Council’s reasonable legal costs associated 
with the Legal Agreement prior to the completion of the agreement 
irrespective of whether the agreement is completed.  
 

 Payment of the appropriate planning obligations monitoring fee prior to the 
completion of the agreement. 

  
  2.3 The application is subject to Stage II referral to the Mayor of London pursuant 

to the Mayor of London Order (2008) 
 

Page 38



  2.4 That the Assistant Director of Planning is delegated authority to issue the 
planning permission and impose conditions and informatives to secure the 
following matters 

 
 
3. SUMMARY AND ASSESSMENT OF THE LATE REPRESENTATIONS 

RECEIVED 
 
3.1 As advised above, a late representation was received from Penningtons on 

the 17th December 2019. The Local Planning Authority set out below a 
response to the letter as set out in the Penningtons letter. 

 
 1) Committee Report Availability 
 
3.2 The Penningtons letter stated that the Strategic Planning Committee report 

had not been published at the time of the letter being written i.e. 17th 
December 2019. In fact, the report was published to the London Borough of 
Havering web-site on the 11th December 2019. 

 
 2) Reference Noise Policies contained within the National Planning 

Policy Framework 2019, National Planning Policy Guidance and the 
London Borough of Havering Core Strategy and Development Control 
Policies DPD 2008 

 
3.3 The letter from Penningtons references supporting text with Policy DC55 of 

London Borough of Havering Core Strategy and Development Control Policies 
DPD 2008, and not the Policy itself; supporting text is not Policy. Policy DC55 
states: 

 
Planning permission will not be granted if it will result in exposure to 
noise or vibrations above acceptable levels affecting a noise sensitive 
development such as all forms of residential accommodation, schools 
and hospitals. Where the proposal would lead to a noise sensitive 
development being located near to a noise generating activity, a formal 
assessment will be required to ensure compliance with the noise 
exposure categories in Planning Policy Guidance Note 24, Planning 
and Noise. Planning conditions may be imposed to this effect. 

 
3.4 The applicant has carried out a formal noise assessment, which has been 

reviewed and assessed by the Council’s Public Protection Officers, who 
agrees with its findings, subject to subsequent assessment of the final 
layout/details of the development which would be part of any reserved matters 
submission and the noise mitigation measures as set out with such reserved 
matters details and required to be submitted through recommended planning 
condition. 

 
3.5 The Local Planning Authority are therefore of the view that the provisions of 

Policy DC55 of London Borough of Havering Core Strategy and Development 
Control Policies DPD 2008 are fully complied with and that the development 
therefore complies with Policy. Officers of Council are therefore satisfied that 

Page 39



an appropriate and acceptable level of amenity can be achieved for future 
residents of this proposed development. 

 
 3) Three fundamental legal errors 
 
3.6 Pennington letter asserts that there are three legal errors in the Strategic 

Planning Committee report. In response, the Local Planning Authority would 
advise the following: 

 
i) Failure to consider the objectors technical submission - The objections 

received, including Technical Note from Delta Simons acting on behalf 
of Rainham Steel, have been reviewed by the Council’s Public 
Protection Officer who has also considered the supporting information 
put forward by the applicant. The conclusion is that, subject to the 
introduction of appropriate mitigation measures, there is no objection to 
the grant of outline planning permission. The December 2019 Report to 
the Strategic Planning Committee also makes detailed reference to the 
objections to the scheme by Rainham Steel 

ii) Failure to give reasons - The Report to the Strategic Planning 
Committee references planning policy, in particular Policy DC55, in a 
manner, which responds to the objections raised by Rainham Steel. 

iii) Failure to take account of impact on adjoining site - If development 
would secure an appropriate level of amenity for future occupants as 
envisaged by the Council’s Public Protection Officer, there would be no 
reason for complaints or negatively affect the future operations of 
Rainham Steel 

 
4) Environmental Noise cannot be mitigated and 7) Concerns re 
external sound levels 

 
3.7 The Public Protection Officer of the Council agrees with the applicants 

assertion that…”it has been demonstrated that with the implementation of the 
proposed mitigation measures that the proposed development will not have 
an adverse impact on existing businesses and the future development should 
not lead to unreasonable restrictions”. 

 
3.8 Further, the Public Protection Officer of the Council agrees that the proposed 

outline residential scheme requires noise mitigation of environmental noise 
from Rainham Steel and road noise. The objector considers that such 
mitigation is not possible, but their own technical advisor agrees that with 
suitable glazing and ventilation to relevant windows (if any are proposed) to 
rooms can achieve acceptable noise levels. Mitigation in the forms of layout, 
balcony type and acoustic screening would result in reduced noise levels to 
outside amenity areas. In addition, as illustrated, internal courtyards would 
meet external noise levels meaning that all residents would have access to a 
suitably quiet outdoor area. Details of such mitigation/layout measures can 
reasonably be required through a condition to require that the measures be 
submitted as part of the reserved matters submission (when the proposed 
layout would be set out and the exact effectiveness of the mitigation 
measures set out and tailored to the detailed layout). 

Page 40



 
 5) Proposed Noise Conditions 
 
3.9 The site is identified in the GLA designated Housing Zone, is a residential 

allocation in the Rainham and Beam Park Planning Framework 2016, and 
allocated in Policy SSA 12 the London Borough of Havering Core Strategy 
and Development Control Policies DPD 2008, where residential and ancillary 
community, retail recreation, educational and leisure uses, and appropriate 
employment uses will be allowed. 

 
3.10 Whilst a detailed strategy of mitigation does not have to be agreed at the 

outline planning stage, the Local Planning Authority have revisited the 
wording of the noise conditions; these are set out in the Appendix to this 
Report. 

 
 6) Planning Statement does not reference working hours at night 
 
3.11 Paragraph 6.18 of the Strategic Planning Committee Report references night 

time working at Rainham Steel; the applicants noise assessments carried out 
by M-EC also reference Rainham Steel operating at night. 

 
3.12 The late objection from MZA, dated 19th December raised the following 

issues: 
 
3.13 Internal Noise – the objection appears to accept that internal noise can be 

dealt with through suitable mitigation although questions the practicality of 
this. In response, there are many similar situations in urban areas where such 
mitigation is required and dealt with through suitable conditions. 

 
3.14 External Noise – the objection raises the issue of the very high noise 

conditions at the boundary of the site and likelihood of complaints from future 
residents of the development. In response, the illustrative plans show the 
buildings set back from the boundary with Rainham Steel, so noise levels 
would not be so high at this rear façade, although the noise levels do exceed 
suggested levels meaning that this aspect does need careful consideration. 
With regard to noise to external amenity areas, both the applicants and 
objectors reports indicate that all internal courtyards within the illustrative 
scheme achieve acceptable noise levels both during the day and night. 
Paragraph 011 of NPPG on noise states, noise aspects can be partially offset 
if residents have access to one or more of certain types of amenity space 
including a relatively quiet communal space or a nearby park which has quiet 
areas. One possible mitigation measure would be to have no balconies where 
noise levels could be exceeded, but from a residential amenity point of view, it 
would be preferable for all dwellings to have access to a private outdoor area 
and for flats this would normally be a balcony. British Standard BS8233:2014 
sets out recommended outdoor levels but clarifies that the levels stated are 
guidelines only and not intended to prohibit the use of balconies and that the 
resulting noise levels in amenity spaces should be designed to be as low as 
practicable. As an outline scheme, the internal layout, position of balconies 
and type of balcony is not detailed. It is considered that measures such as 

Page 41



boundary acoustic barriers, siting of buildings, layout and screening of 
balconies would ensure that lowest practicable noise levels on private 
balconies can be achieved. Therefore, use of a condition is considered to be 
appropriate in this case. 

 
4.0 Amendments to Officer’s Report 
 
4.1 In addition to the information and commentary provided above, the following 

changes to the officers report: 
 
 Paragraph 2.3 – The Environment Agency have now confirmed that they have 

no objection to the application. 
 
 Paragraph 4.3 – The Environment Agency no longer object to the proposal 
 
 Paragraphs 6.57 to 6.58 – The Environment Agency no longer object subject 

to a condition regarding floor levels in the part of the site subject to flood risk – 
recommended condition 38. 

 
 Paragraphs 6.17 – 61,8 – As well as the considerations set out above in 

addressing the late representations received, it is considered useful for 
Members in considering the issue, to set out in more detail the considerations 
in regard to noise impacts affecting the proposed development. This is set out 
in the paragraphs below. 

 
4.2 The adjoining site is a steel fabrication and distribution business. There are no 

planning controls that restrict the operations of this site, provided it remains as 
a B2/B8 use. Paragraph 180 of the NPPF states that planning decisions 
should ensure that new development is appropriate for its location. Paragraph 
182 states that where the operation of an existing business or community 
facility could have a significant adverse effect on new development (including 
changes of use) in its vicinity, the applicant (or ‘agent of change’) should be 
required to provide suitable mitigation before the development has been 
completed. National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) on Noise provides 
the following advice (paragraph 009): 

 
Development proposed in the vicinity of existing businesses, 
community facilities or other activities may need to put suitable 
mitigation measures in place to avoid those activities having a 
significant adverse effect on residents or users of the proposed 
scheme. 
In these circumstances the applicant (or ‘agent of change’) will need to 
clearly identify the effects of existing businesses that may cause a 
nuisance (including noise, but also dust, odours, vibration and other 
sources of pollution) and the likelihood that they could have a 
significant adverse effect on new residents/users. In doing so, the 
agent of change will need to take into account not only the current 
activities that may cause a nuisance, but also those activities that 
businesses or other facilities are permitted to carry out, even if they are 
not occurring at the time of the application being made. 

Page 42



The agent of change will also need to define clearly the mitigation 
being proposed to address any potential significant adverse effects that 
are identified. Adopting this approach may not prevent all complaints 
from the new residents/users about noise or other effects, but can help 
to achieve a satisfactory living or working environment, and help to 
mitigate the risk of a statutory nuisance being found if the new 
development is used as designed (for example, keeping windows 
closed and using alternative ventilation systems when the noise or 
other effects are occurring). 
It can be helpful for developers to provide information to prospective 
purchasers or occupants about mitigation measures that have been put 
in place, to raise awareness and reduce the risk of post-
purchase/occupancy complaints. 

 
4.3 The applicant has submitted a noise assessment as part of the application 

and this acknowledges that there are existing noise sources from the 
adjoining business as well as traffic noise from New Road. The applicant’s 
noise report sets out how noise can be mitigated in any residential 
development of the site based on the illustrative layout, both in terms of noise 
experienced within the proposed dwellings (internal noise) and noise 
experienced when outside of the dwelling (external noise). 

 
4.4 As the application has been submitted in outline, the exact mitigation 

measures cannot be described and tested at this time. The exact position and 
layout of the dwellings, position of windows, doors and balconies and nature 
of balconies are not set out in the outline application and would be provided 
as part of any reserved matters submission. 

 
4.5 The applicant’s noise assessment proposes that where necessary, internal 

noise within dwellings can be mitigated to an acceptable standard (the No 
Observed Effect Level) by the use of appropriate glazing and ventilation so 
that residents could close windows and doors should there be industrial or 
traffic noise either during the day or at night. 

 
4.6 External noise standards suggest that an external average noise level of 55 

dB(A) should provide a satisfactory environment. However, there is no 
absolute standard that a maximum level should be achieved. National 
Planning Practice Guidance sets out the following advice (Paragraph 011): 

 
Noise impacts may be partially offset if residents have access to one or 
more of: 

 a relatively quiet facade (containing windows to habitable rooms) as 
part of their dwelling; 

 a relatively quiet external amenity space for their sole use, (e.g. a 
garden or balcony). Although the existence of a garden or balcony 
is generally desirable, the intended benefits will be reduced if this 
area is exposed to noise levels that result in significant adverse 
effects; 

Page 43



 a relatively quiet, protected, nearby external amenity space for sole 
use by a limited group of residents as part of the amenity of their 
dwellings; and/or 

 a relatively quiet, protected, external publically accessible amenity 
space (e.g. a public park or a local green space designated 
because of its tranquillity) that is nearby (e.g. within a 5 minute 
walking distance). 

 
4.7 The applicant’s noise assessment considers that 55dB(A) can be achieved for 

the majority of the communal areas within the site, mainly due to the barrier 
affect provided by the buildings themselves. The assessment considers that 
private outdoor space (terraces at ground floor and balconies at upper floors) 
would not likely achieve 55dB(A) and could be subject to average noise of 
around 60 dB(A) without mitigation. Mitigation is suggested in the form of solid 
balustrading and boundary noise barrier which will bring noise levels closer to 
the 55dB(A) standard. It should also be possible to provide further mitigation 
by siting balconies away from the southern boundary and considering winter 
gardens as an alternative. 

 
4.9 The objector has appointed a noise consultant who mainly agrees with the 

current noise level conditions outlined by the applicant. However, the 
objector’s noise consultant considers that suitable mitigation measures are 
not possible to be achieved, although the consultant agrees that internal noise 
can be mitigated albeit that having windows shut is not ideal for residents and 
that the Council will have to deal with complaints from future residents which 
could result in action being taken against the existing business. 

 
4.10 The Council’s Public Protection Officer has considered the applicant’s noise 

evidence as well as that submitted on behalf of the objector. Given the 
national planning guidance, it is considered that the applicant has set out a 
suitable range of mitigation measures that would result in a satisfactory noise 
conditions for future residents. 

 
4.11 It is considered that given the distance of the proposed dwellings from the 

southern boundary, a noise barrier of suitable height can be installed, if 
necessary, without any significant visual harm or impact on residential 
amenity. 

 
4.12 As this is an outline application, the exact details of the layout of the proposal 

and the mitigation measures are not provided. Given the current noise 
environment, it is important that both the layout of the proposal and noise 
mitigation be considered at the same time. It is therefore recommended that 
there be a condition that requires the precise nature of a scheme of noise 
mitigation be submitted at the same time and reflects the reserved matters. It 
is also recommended that the mitigation measures includes measures to 
provide information to future occupiers of the proposed development of the 
mitigation measures and how to effectively use them, in accordance with 
NPPG.   

 

 

Page 44



Appendix 1  
 
Conditions 

 
1. Details of the access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale (hereinafter 

called "the reserved matters") shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the local planning authority before any development begins and the 
development shall be carried out as approved. 
 
Reason: This is outline permission only and these matters have been 
reserved for the subsequent approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
2. Application/s for approval of the reserved matters shall be submitted to the 

Local Planning Authority within three years from the date of this permission.                                                                          
 
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004). 
 

3. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later 
than the expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved 
matters or, in the case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the 
last reserved matter to be approved.                      
                                                      
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004). 
 

4. Unless details are provided and approved as part of the reserved matters 
submission(s), no above ground works shall take place in relation to any of 
the development hereby approved until details and samples of all materials to 
be used in the external construction of the building(s) and hard landscaped 
areas are submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority and thereafter the development shall be constructed with the 
approved materials. 
                                                                          
Reason: Insufficient information has been supplied with the application to 
judge the appropriateness of the materials to be used.  Submission of 
samples prior to commencement will ensure that the appearance of the 
proposed development will harmonise with the character of the surrounding 
area and comply with Policy DC61 of the Development Control Policies 
Development Plan Document. 

 
 

5. The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise than in 
complete accordance with the approved plans, particulars and specifications 
(as set out on page one of this decision notice) and any other plans, drawings, 
particulars and specifications pursuant to any further approval of details as 
are approved by the Local Planning Authority 
 

Page 45



Reason: The Local Planning Authority consider it essential that the whole of 
the development is carried out and that no departure whatsoever is made 
from the details approved, since the development would not necessarily be 
acceptable if partly carried out or carried out differently in any degree from the 
details submitted. Also, in order that the development accords with 
Development Control Policies Development Plan Document Policy DC61. 

 
6. Prior to, or concurrently with, the submission of the first reserved matters 

application for residential development, a strategy for the provision and 
distribution of car spaces across the entire site to be used exclusively used for 
car club(s), shall be submitted to, and agreed in writing with the local planning 
authority. The spaces shall be provided in accordance with the approved 
strategy.  
 
Reason: In order to promote wider transport choice and realise opportunities 
for large scale development, in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 
104 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 

 
7. No development shall proceed until details of parking management and 

allocation within the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details and the car park managed accordingly 
thereafter. 
 
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Policy DC33 of the London Borough 
of Havering LDF Core Strategy and Development Control Policies DPD 2011 
and paragraphs 105 and 106 of the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019. 

 
8. Unless details are provided and approved as part of the reserved matters 

submission(s), prior to the commencement of the development, a drawing 
showing the proposed site levels of the application site and the finished floor 
levels of the proposed dwellings shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: Insufficient information has been supplied with the application to 
judge the proposed site levels of the proposed development.  Submission of a 
scheme prior to commencement will ensure that the development accords 
with the Development Control Policies Development Plan Document Policy 
DC61.  It will also ensure accordance with Section 197 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
9. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, provision 

shall be made for the storage of refuse and recycling awaiting collection 
according to details which shall previously have been agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: In the interests of amenity of occupiers of the development and also 
the visual amenity of the development and the locality generally, and in order 

Page 46



that the development accords with the LDF Development Control Policies 
Development Plan Document Policy DC61. 

 
10. Prior to the completion of the development hereby permitted, cycle storage of 

a type and in a location previously submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority shall be provided and permanently retained 
thereafter. 
 
Reason: Insufficient information has been supplied with the application to 
demonstrate what facilities will be available for cycle parking.  Submission of 
this detail prior to occupation in the case of new building works or prior to the 
use commencing in the case of changes of use is in the interests of providing 
a wide range of facilities for non-motor car residents and sustainability. 

 
11.  All building operations in connection with the construction of external walls, 

roof, and foundations; site excavation or other external site works; works 
involving the use of plant or machinery; the erection of scaffolding; the 
delivery of materials; the removal of materials and spoil from the site, and the 
playing of amplified music shall only take place between the hours of 8.00am 
and 6.00pm Monday to Friday, and between 8.00am and 1.00pm on 
Saturdays and not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays/Public Holidays. 
 
Reason: To protect residential amenity, and in order that the development 
accords with the Development Control Policies Development Plan Document 
Policy DC61. 

 
12.  The buildings shall be constructed so as to provide sound insulation of 45 

DnT, w + Ctr dB (minimum value) against airborne noise. 
 
Reason:- To prevent noise nuisance to adjoining properties in accordance 
with Policy DC55 of the Development Control Policies Development Plan 
Document. 

 
13.  Details of noise insulation/attenuation scheme detailing the acoustic/noise 

insulation performance specification of the external building envelope of the 
residential units (having regard to the building fabric, glazing and ventilation 
(including the need for mechanical ventilation)) and other mitigation to 
demonstrate that internal noise levels will accord with BS 8233: 2014 
"Guidance on sound reduction and noise reduction for buildings" shall be 
submitted with any reserved matters application for the approval of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
The noise insulation and attenuation scheme referred to above should set out 
how external noise levels in defined amenity areas have been reduced to be 
as low as practicable (including details of any mitigation) by reference to 
target level 55db LAeq,T, in accordance with the approach as set out within 
BS 8233 :2014 and Professional Planning Guidance: Planning and Noise 
(ProPG) to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 47



The noise insulation and attenuation scheme referred to above should set out 
how information will be provided to prospective purchasers or occupants 
about mitigation measures that have been put in place.  
 
The approved development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with 
the approved scheme and all measures/insulation/attenuation provided in 
accordance with the scheme shall be permanently retained thereafter. 
 
Reason: To protect future residents against the impact of external noise and 
in order that the development accords with the Development Control Policies 
Development Plan Document Policies DC55 and DC61. 

 
14. Full details of the acoustic performance of any plant and/ or equipment, 

including enclosures, including but not limited to air handling units, boilers, 
lifts, mechanical ventilation and CHP to be used in the development, including 
provisions for their retention and maintenance, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of 
the relevant part of the development. Such plant and/ or equipment, including 
any enclosures, shall not cause the existing noise level to increase when 
measured at one metre from the façade of the nearest noise sensitive 
premise. In order to achieve this, the details shall demonstrate that the plant 
has been designed/ selected, or the noise from the plant will be attenuated, so 
that 10db below the existing background noise level. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved details and plant, equipment 
and enclosures shall be retained and maintained in accordance with the 
details approved. 

 
 Reason:- To prevent noise nuisance to adjoining properties in accordance 

with the Development Control Policies Development Plan Document Policies 
DC55 and DC61. 

 
15. Prior to the commencement of any works pursuant to this permission the 
developer shall submit for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority; 
 
a) A Phase II (Site Investigation) Report, as the Phase I Report confirms the 
possibility of a significant risk to any sensitive receptors.  This is an intrusive site 
investigation including factors such as chemical testing, quantitative risk assessment 
and a description of the sites ground conditions.  An updated Site Conceptual Model 
should be included showing all the potential pollutant linkages and an assessment of 
risk to identified receptors. 
 
b) A Phase III (Remediation Strategy) Report if the Phase II Report confirms the 
presence of a significant pollutant linkage requiring remediation.  A detailed 
remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by 
removing unacceptable risks to all receptors must be prepared, and is subject to the 
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all 
works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, 
timetable of works, site management procedures and procedure for dealing with 
previously unidentified any contamination. The scheme must ensure that the site will 

Page 48



not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. 
 
c) Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme mentioned in 1(c) above, a "Verification Report" that demonstrates the 
effectiveness of the remediation carried out, any requirement for longer-term 
monitoring of contaminant linkages, maintenance and arrangements for contingency 
action, must be produced, and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To protect those engaged in construction and occupation of the 
development from potential contamination and in order that the development accords 
with Development Control Policies Development Plan Document Policy DC53. 
 
16. If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be 
present at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing 
with the local planning authority) shall be carried out until a remediation strategy 
detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The remediation strategy 
shall be implemented as approved. 
 
a) Following completion of the remediation works as mentioned above, a 
'Verification Report' must be submitted demonstrating that the works have been 
carried out satisfactorily and remediation targets have been achieved. 
 
Reason: To ensure that any previously unidentified contamination found at the site is 
investigated and satisfactorily addressed in order to protect those engaged in 
construction and occupation of the development from potential contamination. 
 
17. Electric charging points shall be installed in 10% of the allocated parking 
spaces at the development. The charging points shall be supplied with an 
independent 32amp radial circuit and must comply with BS7671. Standard 3 pin, 13 
amp external sockets will be required. The sockets shall comply with BS1363, and 
must be provided with a locking weatherproof cover if located externally to the 
building. 
 
Reason: Paragraph 110 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 states that, 
inter alia, specific applications for development should ensure that appropriate 
opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be taken up, given the 
type of development and its location.....applications for development should be 
designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe, 
accessible and convenient locations. 
 
18. Before development is commenced, a scheme shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority making provision for a 
Construction Method Statement to control the adverse impact of the development on 
the amenity of the public and nearby occupiers.  The Construction Method statement 
shall include details of: 
 
a)  parking of vehicles of site personnel and visitors; 

Page 49



b)  storage of plant and materials; 
c)  dust management controls; 
d)  measures for minimising the impact of noise and, if appropriate, vibration arising 
from construction activities; 
e)  no piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the depth and 
type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling will be 
carried out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage 
subsurface sewerage infrastructure, and the programme of works) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing.  
f)  predicted noise and, if appropriate, vibration levels for construction using 
methodologies and at points agreed with the Local Planning Authority; 
g)  scheme for monitoring noise and if appropriate, vibration levels using 
methodologies and at points agreed with the Local Planning Authority; 
h)  siting and design of temporary buildings; 
i)  scheme for security fencing/hoardings, depicting a readily visible 24-hour contact 
number for queries or emergencies; 
j)  details of disposal of waste arising from the construction programme, including 
final disposal points.  The burning of waste on the site at any time is specifically 
precluded. 
 
And the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme 
and statement. 
 
Reason: Insufficient information has been supplied with the application in relation to 
the proposed construction methodology.  Submission of details prior to 
commencement will ensure that the method of construction protects residential 
amenity.  It will also ensure that the development accords the Development Control 
Policies Development Plan Document Policy DC61.Further, the proposed works will 
be in close proximity to underground sewerage utility infrastructure. 
 
19. No development shall take place until a Construction Logistics Plan and a 
Deliveries and Servicing Plan are submitted and agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority in consultation with Transport for London. The Construction 
Logistics Plan (CLP) shall aim to identify the cumulative impacts of construction 
traffic for the area in terms of likely additional trips and mitigation required. The CLP 
should show that construction vehicle movements would be optimised to avoid the 
am and pm traffic peaks and reduce highway impact on the Transport for London 
Road Network in the vicinity of the site. The plan shall be implemented as approved. 
The Deliveries and Servicing Plan shall seek to proactively manage deliveries to 
reduce the number of delivery and servicing trips, particularly in the morning peak. 
 
Reason: - In the interests of highway safety and efficiency and to comply with polices 
CP10, DC32, DC37 and DC61 of the Adopted Development Plan Document (2008) 
and policies 2.8, 6.1, 6.3, 6.11 and 6.12 of the London Plan. 
 
20. a) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the 
developer or contractor must be signed up to the NRMM register.   
b) The development site must be entered onto the register alongside all the 
NRMM equipment details.   

Page 50



c) The register must be kept up-to-date for the duration of the construction of 
development. 
d) It is to be ensured that all NRMM complies with the requirements of the 
directive.     
e) An inventory of all NRMM to be kept on-site stating the emission limits for all 
equipment.   
 
Reason: Being a major development in Greater London, but outside the Non-Road 
Mobile Machinery (NRMM) Central Activity Zone, NRMM used on site must meet 
Stage IIIA of EU Directive 97/68/EC as a minimum.  From 1st September 2020 the 
minimum requirement for any NRMM used on site within Greater London will rise to 
Stage IIIB of the Directive. 
 
21. a) Prior to the commencement of the development, a Dust Monitoring 
Scheme for the duration of the demolition and construction phase of the 
development hereby approved, shall be submitted for the written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall detail 
 
- Determination of existing (baseline) pollution levels; 
- Type of monitoring to be undertaken; 
- Number, classification and location of monitors; 
- Duration of monitoring; 
- QA/QC Procedures; 
- Site action levels; and 
- Reporting method. 
 
b) Following the completion of measures identified in the approved Dust 
Monitoring Scheme, a "Dust Monitoring Report" that demonstrates the effectiveness 
of the dust monitoring carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval of 
the Local Planning Authority.  
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the construction activities do not give rise to any 
exceedances of the national air quality objectives/limit values for PM10 and/or 
PM2.5, or any exceedances of recognised threshold criteria for dust 
deposition/soiling. 
 
22. Prior to the commencement of the development, the developer shall submit 
for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority full details of mitigation 
measures that will be implemented to protect the internal air quality of the buildings. 
The use hereby permitted shall not commence until the approved measures have 
been shown to be implemented to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority in 
writing. 
 
Reason: To protect the health of future occupants from potential effects of poor air 
quality and to comply with the national air quality objectives within the designated Air 
Quality Management Area. 
 
23. Prior to the first occupation of the development, details shall be submitted to 
and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the installation of Ultra-Low 

Page 51



NOx boilers with maximum NOX Emissions less than 40 mg/kWh. The installation of 
the boilers shall be carried out in strict accordance with the agreed details and shall 
thereafter be permanently retained.  
 
Reason: In the interests of the living conditions of occupiers of nearby properties and 
future occupiers of the site. 
 
24. Unless details are provided and approved as part of the reserved matters 
submission(s), no development above ground level shall take place until details of all 
proposed walls, fences and boundary treatment are submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  The boundary development shall then be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the 
development for residential purposes and shall be permanently retained and 
maintained thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: Insufficient information has been supplied with the application to judge the 
appropriateness of any boundary treatment.  Submission of this detail prior to 
commencement will protect the visual amenities of the development, prevent undue 
overlooking of adjoining property and ensure that the development accords with the 
Development Control Policies Development Plan Document Policy DC61. 
 
25. Unless details are provided and approved as part of the reserved matters 
submission(s), before any above ground development is commenced, surfacing 
materials for the access road and parking areas shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority and thereafter the access road shall be 
constructed with the approved materials. Once constructed, the access road shall be 
kept permanently free of any obstruction (with the exception of the car parking 
spaces shown on the approved plans) to prevent uses of the access road for 
anything but access.  
 
Reason: Insufficient information has been supplied with the application to judge the 
appropriateness of the surfacing materials.  Submission of this detail prior to 
commencement will ensure that the development accords with the Development 
Control Policies Development Plan Document Policy DC61. 
 
26. Before the residential units hereby permitted are first occupied, the area set 
aside for car parking spaces shall be laid out and surfaced to the satisfaction of the 
Local Planning Authority and provide a minimum of 37.No. spaces, those areas shall 
be retained permanently thereafter for the accommodation of vehicles associated 
with the site.   
 
Reason: To ensure that car parking accommodation is made permanently available 
to the standards adopted by the Local Planning Authority in the interest of highway 
safety, and that the development accords with the Development Control Policies 
Development Plan Document Policy DC32. 
 
27. The proposals shall provide a 2.1 by 2.1 metre pedestrian visibility splay on 
either side of the proposed access, set back to the boundary of the public footway. 
There shall be no obstruction or object higher than 0.6 metres within the visibility 
splay. 

Page 52



 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, and in order that the development 
accords with the Development Control Policies Development Plan Document Policy 
DC32. 
 
28. No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until access to 
the highway has been completed in accordance with the details of access approved 
as part of the reserved matters. 
 
Reason: In the interests of ensuring good design and ensuring public safety and to 
comply with policies of the Core Strategy and Development Control Policies DPD, 
namely CP10, CP17, and DC61. 
 
29. Before the development hereby permitted is first commenced, vehicle 
cleansing facilities to prevent mud being deposited onto the public highway during 
construction works shall be provided on site in accordance with details to be first 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
facilities shall be retained thereafter and used at relevant entrances to the site 
throughout the duration of construction works. If mud or other debris originating from 
the site is deposited in the public highway, all on-site operations shall cease until it 
has been removed.  The submission will provide; 
 
a)  A plan showing where vehicles will be parked within the site to be inspected for 
mud and debris and cleaned if required. The plan should show where construction 
traffic will access and exit the site from the public highway.  
 
b)  A description of how the parking area will be surfaced, drained and cleaned to 
prevent mud, debris and muddy water being tracked onto the public highway; 
 
c)  A description of how vehicles will be checked before leaving the site - this applies 
to the vehicle wheels, the underside of vehicles, mud flaps and wheel arches. 
 
d)  A description of how vehicles will be cleaned. 
 
e)  A description of how dirty/ muddy water be dealt with after being washing off the 
vehicles. 
 
f)   A description of any contingency plan to be used in the event of a break-down of 
the wheel washing arrangements. 
 
Reason: Insufficient information has been supplied with the application in relation to 
wheel washing facilities.  Submission of details prior to commencement will ensure 
that the facilities provided prevent materials from the site being deposited on the 
adjoining public highway, in the interests of highway safety and the amenity of the 
surrounding area. It will also ensure that the development accords with the 
Development Control Policies Development Plan Document Policies DC32 and 
DC61. 
 
30. No development shall commence until full details of the drainage strategy, 
drainage layout, together with SUDS information to serve the development have 

Page 53



been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
works commencing on development.  
 
In terms of foul and surface water drainage, no properties shall be occupied until 
confirmation has been provided that either: 
 
1. Capacity exists off site to serve the development, or 
2. A housing and infrastructure plan has been submitted to and agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. Where a housing and infrastructure phasing plan is 
agreed, no occupation shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed 
housing and infrastructure phasing plan, or 
3. All wastewater network upgrades required to accommodate the additional flows 
from the development have been completed. 
 
The scheme agreed shall be implemented strictly in accordance with such 
agreement unless subsequent amendments have been agreed with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure that the development is properly drained in accordance with the 
provisions of Policy DC51 of the London Borough of Havering Core Strategy and 
Development Control Policies Development Plan Document 2008, and that network 
reinforcement works may be required to accommodate the proposed development. 
Any reinforcement works identified will be necessary in order to avoid flooding and/ 
or potential pollution incidents. 
 
31. Prior to carrying out above grade works of each building or part of a building, 
details shall be submitted to and approved, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority 
to demonstrate that such building or such part of a building can achieve full 'Secured 
by Design' accreditation.  The development shall only be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interest of community safety and in accordance with the Development 
Control Policies Development Plan Document Policies DC63 and London Borough of 
Havering's Supplementary Planning Documents on 'Designing Safer Places' (2010) 
and 'Sustainable Design Construction' (2009). 
 
32. Prior to the first occupation of each building or part of a building or use, a 
'Secured by Design' accreditation shall be obtained for such building or part of such 
building or use. 
 
Reason: In the interest of community safety and in accordance with the Development 
Control Policies Development Plan Document Policies DC63 and London Borough of 
Havering's Supplementary Planning Documents on 'Designing Safer Places' (2010) 
and 'Sustainable Design Construction' (2009). 
 
33. All dwellings hereby approved shall comply with Regulation 36 (2) (b) and 
Part G2 of the Building Regulations - Water Efficiency. 
 
Reason: In order to comply with Policy 5.15 of the London Plan. 
 

Page 54



34. The dwellings hereby approved shall be constructed to comply with Part M4 
(2) of the Building Regulations - Accessible and Adaptable Dwellings. 
 
Reason: In order to comply with Policy DC7 of the Local Development Framework 
and Policy 3.8 of the London Plan. 
 
35. No development shall take place within the proposed development site until 
the applicant has produced a detailed scheme showing the complete scope and 
arrangement of the foundation design and other below ground works, which have 
been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
No demolition or development shall take place until a stage 1 written scheme of 
investigation (WSI) has been submitted to and approved by the local planning 
authority in writing. For land that is included within the WSI, no demolition or 
development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed WSI, and the 
programme and methodology of site evaluation and the nomination of a competent 
person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works. 
 
If heritage assets of archaeological interest are identified by stage 1 then for those 
parts of the site which have archaeological interest a stage 2 WSI shall be submitted 
to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is included 
within the stage 2 WSI, no demolition/development shall take place other than in 
accordance with the agreed stage 2 WSI which shall include: 
 
A. The statement of significance and research objectives, the programme and 
methodology of site investigation and recording and the nomination of a competent 
person(s) or organisation to undertake the agreed works 
 
B. The programme for post-investigation assessment and subsequent analysis, 
publication & dissemination and deposition of resulting material. This part of the 
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in 
accordance with the programme set out in the stage 2 WSI. 
 
Written schemes of investigation will need to be prepared and implemented by a 
suitably qualified professionally accredited archaeological practice in accordance 
with Historic England's Guidelines for Archaeological Projects in Greater London.  
 
Following the results of archaeological evaluation, no development shall take place 
within the proposed development site until the applicant has produced a detailed 
scheme for heritage outreach and site interpretation, which have been submitted to 
and approved by the local planning authority. 
 
Reason: Heritage assets of archaeological interest survive on the site. The planning 
authority wishes to ensure that significant remains are not disturbed or damaged by 
foundation works but are, where appropriate, preserved in situ and the planning 
authority wishes to secure public benefit from any loss of remains through 
appropriate on site interpretation and public outreach work. The planning authority 
wishes to secure the provision of archaeological investigation and the subsequent 
recording of the remains prior to development (including historic buildings recording), 

Page 55



in accordance with Policy DC70 of the Development Control Policies Development 
Plan Document and the National Planning Policy Framework 2019. 
 
36. Prior to first occupation of any dwelling hereby permitted, one fire hydrant 
shall be installed in the position shown on drawing No. NR09 Illustrative Typical 
Upper Floor Plan and shall be numbered 127559. The fire hydrant shall be sited one 
metre clear of all obstructions, with the outlets no more than 300mm below ground 
level. The hydrant shall conform to BS: 750:1984 and be indicated with a hydrant 
indicator plate conforming to BS: 3251:1976 
 
Reason: To provide an adequate supply of water for fire fighting. 
37. No development shall take place until a scheme for the provision of bat and 
bird boxes within the development shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The boxes so approved within each phase of the development 
shall be completed and available for use before the last dwelling within that phase is 
occupied. 
 
Reason: To ensure that any protected species remain safeguarded. 
 
38.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted Flood 
Risk Assessment (FRA) referenced 1700003058 and shall include the following 
mitigation measures it details that no sleeping accommodation shall be provided below 
the maximum predicted flood level for those buildings located within the tidal breach 
extents.  
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and future 
occupants. The raised floor levels will ensure that any proposed sleeping 
accommodation will be above 3the modelled flood level in the event of a breach in the 
tidal flood defences. The submitted Flood Risk Assessment indicates that finished floor 
levels will be set at 3.28 mAOD (1 in 1000 breach event) to protect future residents from 
flooding. Although we support these higher levels we would normally only expect 
finished floor levels to be set above the 1 in 200 breach event (3.18 mAOD). 
 
39. No works shall be carried out under this planning permission unless and until 
all of the land within the planning application boundary is bound by a suitable legal 
agreement (pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) and all other enabling powers) substantially in the form of the attached 
draft S106 agreement. 
 
[Not part of condition, but attached draft S106 agreement to include following heads 
of terms 
 
Pursuant to  Section 16 of the Greater London Council (General Powers) Act 1974  - 
Restrictions on owner and occupiers applying for Parking Permits including 
provisions not to sell, lease, let or otherwise dispose of any dwelling unit or permit 
any occupation of any dwelling unit without first imposing in the relevant transfer 
lease, letting or occupation document a term preventing any owner or occupier of 
any dwelling unit from applying to the Council for a residents parking permit for the 
area within which the proposed development is situated; 
 
Controlled Parking Zone Contribution: Provision of £26,768.00 to be paid prior to 
commencement; 

Page 56



 
Financial contribution of £244,240.00 to be used for off-site carbon emissions offset 
measures in lieu of on-site carbon reduction measures, to be paid prior to first 
occupation; 
 
Financial contribution of up to £178,853.58 towards the A1306 Linear Park, to be 
paid prior to commencement; 
 
To provide affordable housing in accordance with a scheme of implementation for all 
New Road sites controlled by the developer that ensures that individual development 
sites are completed so that the overall level of affordable housing (by habitable 
rooms) provided across the sites does not at any time fall below 35% overall. The 
affordable housing to be minimum 40% affordable rent with up to 60% intermediate; 
 
Affordable Housing Review Mechanisms: early, mid and late stage reviews (any 
surplus shared 60:40 in favour of London Borough Havering)  
 
Travel Plan monitoring - sum to be agreed] 
 
 
Reason: The development would otherwise be unacceptable if the obligations sought 
were not able to be secured 
 
 
40. The maximum number of dwellings to be constructed on the application site 
pursuant to the development is restricted to a maximum of 239 dwellings. 
 
Reason: The development is approved pursuant to outline planning application 
which requires a restriction of the maximum number of dwelling that may be 
constructed pursuant to an outline planning permission. 
 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Strategic Planning 
Committee 

19 December 2019 
 

 

Application Reference: P1604.17 
 

Location: 148 - 192 New Road, Rainham 
 

Ward South Hornchurch 
 

Description: Outline planning application for the 
demolition of all buildings and 
redevelopment of the site for 
residential use providing up to 239 
units with ancillary car parking, 
landscaping and access 
 

Case Officer: William Allwood 
 

Reason for Report to Committee: The application is by or on behalf of a 
Joint Venture that includes the 
Council and is a significant 
development. The Local Planning 
Authority is considering the 
application in its capacity as local 
planning authority and without regard 
to the identify of the Applicant.   

 

 
 
1 SUMMARY OF KEY REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 The development of the site for residential is acceptable in principle with no 

policy objection to the loss of the current industrial uses. 
 
1.2 The application is submitted in outline with all matters reserved for future 

approval. The density is within policy range and the layout is considered to be 
satisfactory and capable of providing a high quality development. 

 
1.3 The proposed height at four, five and six storeys is considered appropriate for 

this part of New Road which is set to be transformed through the arrival of the 
station and nearby redevelopments of sites. 

 
1.4 Members may recall considering the application as part of a consultation 

exercise held at Strategic Planning Committee on the 28th February 2019. At 
that time, the height of the blocks ranged from four to eight storeys. Further, 

Page 59



Members raised a number of issues for clarification, which are addressed in 
some detail as part of this Report.  

 
1.5 Subject to details submitted at reserved matters stage, the impact on the 

residential amenity of existing occupiers would not be affected to an 
unacceptable degree. 

 
1.6 Given the location of the site close to the proposed new Beam Park Station 

and applicable maximum parking standards, the level of parking proposed is 
considered acceptable. 

 
1.7 A significant factor weighing in favour of the proposal is the 35% affordable 

housing proposed across the sites in control of the applicant, meeting the 
objectives of the Housing Zone, and current and future planning policy. 

 
1.8 The recommended conditions would secure future policy compliance by the 

applicant at the site, and ensure any unacceptable development impacts are 
mitigated. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee resolve to GRANT planning permission subject to 

conditions, to include key matters as set out below:  
 
2.2 That the Assistant Head of Planning is delegated authority to negotiate any 

subsequent legal agreement required to secure compliance with Condition 40 
below, including that:  

 

 All contribution sums shall include interest to the due date of expenditure and 
all contribution sums to be subject to indexation from the date of completion of 
the Section 106 agreement to the date of receipt by the Council.  
 

 The Developer/Owner to pay the Council’s reasonable legal costs associated 
with the Legal Agreement prior to the completion of the agreement 
irrespective of whether the agreement is completed.  
 

 Payment of the appropriate planning obligations monitoring fee prior to the 
completion of the agreement. 

  
  2.3 The OBJECTION from the Environment Agency is resolved prior to the 

application being referred to the Mayor. The application is subject to Stage II 
referral to the Mayor of London pursuant to the Mayor of London Order (2008) 

 
  2.4 That the Assistant Director of Planning is delegated authority to issue the 

planning permission and impose conditions and informatives to secure the 
following matters 

 
 
 

Page 60



Conditions 
1. Outline – Reserved matters to be submitted 
2. Outline – Time limit for details 
3. Outline - Time limit for commencement 
4. Details of materials if not submitted at reserved matters stage 
5. Accordance with plans 
6. Car club management 
7. Parking allocation and management plan 
8. Details of site levels if not submitted at reserved matters stage 
9. Details of refuse and recycling storage 
10. Details of cycle storage 
11. Hours of construction 
12. Noise Insulation 
13. Noise Insulation (specific) 
14. Noise – new plant 
15. Contamination – site investigation and remediation 
16. Contamination – if contamination subsequently discovered 
17. Electric charging points 
18. Construction methodology 
19. Construction Logistics and Deliveries/ Servicing Plan 
20. Air Quality – construction machinery 
21. Air Quality – demolition/construction dust control 
22. Air Quality – internal air quality measures 
23. Air Quality – low nitrogen oxide boilers 
24. Details of boundaries if not submitted at reserved matters stage 
25. Details of surfacing materials if not submitted at reserved matters stage 
26. Car parking to be provided and retained 
27. Pedestrian visibility splays 
28. Vehicle access to be provided 
29. Wheel washing facilities during construction 
30. Minimum Floor Level 
31. Emergency Planning/ Access and Egress 
32. Details of drainage strategy, layout and SUDS 

Page 61



33. Details of secure by design  
34. Secure by Design accreditation to be obtained 
35. Water efficiency 
36. Accessible dwellings 
37. Archaeological investigation prior to commencement 
38. Bat/bird boxes to be provided 
39. Fire Hydrant 
40. Not to commence development before the following obligations and 

planning obligations are secured: 
a. Pursuant to Section 16 of the Greater London Council (General 

Powers) Act 1974, restriction on parking permits 
b. Controlled Parking Zone contribution sum of £26,768.00 or such other 

figure as is approved by the Council: Indexed 
c. Linear Park contribution sum of £272,308.54 or such other figure as 

approved by the Council: Indexed 
d. Carbon offset contribution sum of £244,200.00 or such other figure as 

approved by the Council: Indexed 
e. Travel Plan monitoring – sums to be agreed 
f. Bus mitigation Strategy – sums to be agreed, but between £175,000.00 

and £225,000.00 
g. To provide affordable housing in accordance with a scheme of 

implementation for all New Road sites controlled by the developer that 
ensures that individual development sites are completed so that the 
overall level of affordable housing (by habitable rooms) provided 
across the sites does not at any time fall below 35% overall. The 
affordable housing to be minimum 40% affordable rent with up to 60% 
intermediate 

h. Affordable Housing Review Mechanisms: early, mid and late stage 
reviews (any surplus shared 60:40 in favour of London Borough 
Havering) in accordance with the Mayor of London’s Affordable 
Housing and Viability SPG (2017) 
 

 
Informatives 
1. Statement pursuant to Article 31 of the Development Management 

Procedure Order 
2. Fee for condition submissions 
3. Changes to public highway 
4. Highway legislation 
5. Temporary use of the highway 
6. Surface water management 
7. Community safety 
8. Street naming/numbering 
9. Protected species 
10. Protected species – bats 
11. Crime and disorder 
12. Cadent Gas, Essex and Suffolk Water, and Thames Water comments 
13. Letter boxes 
 

Page 62



2.4 In terms of the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), the development will be 
liable to pay CIL when the development is built, and as the liability is 
calculated at the Reserved Matters stage, there is no need to submit any CIL 
forms with this outline planning application. In any event, the Local Planning 
Authority will still require contributions for controlled parking, linear park and 
carbon offset as part of a Legal Agreement. In this regard, the London 
Mayoral CIL charging rate is £25 per sq. m., and the Havering CIL for this part 
of Rainham (introduced on the 01st September 2019) is £55 per sq. m.  

 
3 PROPOSAL AND LOCATION DETAILS 
  

Proposal 
 

3.1 The application is for outline permission with all matters reserved seeking 
approval for the principal of the development quantum with access, layout, 
appearance, landscaping and scale as reserved matters. The red line site 
area, as amended, measures 1.932 hectares. 

 
3.2 The application as submitted was for the demolition of buildings and 

redevelopment of the site for residential use providing up to 187.No. units with 
ancillary car parking, landscaping and access. Subsequently, the outline 
proposals have been amended, and are now for the demolition of the existing 
buildings and redevelopment of the site comprising the erection of up to 6 
storey blocks. The indicative mix proposed across the site, as amended, 
includes 58.No. of 1 bedroom, 2-person apartments, 24.No. of 2 bedroom, 3-
person apartments, 78.No. of 2 bedroom, 4-person apartments and 79.No. 3 
bedroom, 5-person apartments. A total of 239 units would now be provided.  

 
3.3 The amended proposals have been subject to third party and statutory 

consultations, and this process expired on the 09th October 2019. Any further 
responses are therefore included within this Report.  

 
3.4 The proposal also outlines 122.No. dedicated vehicular parking spaces for 

residents at a ratio of 0.51 spaces per unit. Secure cycle storage areas are to 
be provided within the apartment blocks and suggested that a minimum of 
449.No secure resident cycle racks spaces and 6.No external visitor cycle 
parking spaces, will be provided together with internal refuse areas. 

 
3.5 The principle vehicular access to the proposed site is centrally positioned 

towards the south west of the New Road frontage; emergency vehicular 
access, protected by demountable bollards, are positioned to the northwest 
and southeast of the New Road site frontage. 

 
3.6 The application site lies within the Rainham and Beam Park Housing Zone, 

and is owned by private landowners.  The applicant is a joint venture including 
the London Borough of Havering, although they do not own the land. Should 
the ;and not be secured by negotiation, the Council are seeking to undertake 
Compulsory Purchase Orders (‘’CPOs’’) to help deliver the comprehensive 
redevelopment of the area which is key to delivering the forecasted rate of 

Page 63



house building and quality of development identified in the adopted Rainham 
and Beam Park Planning Framework. The precursor to a CPO is often to have 
planning permission in place. 

 
 Site and Surroundings 
 
3.7 The site is currently accessed from New Road to the north. The site contains 

buildings generally of two storeys in scale, and are characterised by a variety 
of commercial uses; there are also some residential properties within the site 
fronting onto New Road. To the northwest of the application site, opposite 
Betterton Road, contains two storey buildings (formerly dwellings), now used 
in association with commercial activities. There are also further commercial 
buildings to the southeast of the frontage; Rainham Steel is also located 
beyond the site boundary to the south, and to the north of the railway. Moving 
further along New Road to the southwest, there is a two storey building, 
perpendicular to New Road, with open tyre storage. Further to the southwest, 
a site contains “Rainham Sheds”, which includes a two-storey scale building 
set back from New Road, with open storage of timber gardens sheds with 
parking areas, together with a car and tyre centre, a hand car wash premises, 
residential dwellings, a scaffolding company, motor parts premises, a tool hire 
business, a signage company and car/ van rental business. The iconic 
Rainham Steel office building is situated to the south east of the application 
site. 

 
3.8 The site is 1.91ha and is located on the north side of the New Road, between 

Walden Avenue to the west, and Askwith Road to the east. The site is broadly 
rectangular in shape and appears to be generally level. It is bounded to the 
east and west by commercial and residential development along New Road. 
The southern part of the site fronts onto New Road and extends for 
approximately 253m, containing a variety of boundary treatment.  

 
3.9 The site is within the Rainham and Beam Park Housing Zone and within the 

area covered by the adopted Rainham and Beam Park Planning Framework. 
The site does not form part of a conservation area, and is not located within 
the immediate vicinity or setting of any listed buildings.  Site constraints that 
are of material relevance with the works proposed include potentially 
contaminated land, Health and Safety Zone, Air Quality Management Area, 
Flood Zone 3 and area of potential archaeological significance. 

 
Planning History 
 

3.10 The following planning decisions are relevant to the application: 
 

P1136.17 – Full application for a residential development of 48 units 
comprising a four storey block of 41 residential units (5no. x studios, 13no. x 1 
bed, 20no. x 2 bed, 3no. x 3 bed) and 7no. terraced, 3-bedroom houses to the 
rear, associated plant rooms, car parking spaces, refuse and cycle storage 
following the demolition of the existing buildings. Planning permission refused. 
Appeal Withdrawn – Application Disposed Of. 

 

Page 64



4 CONSULTATION RESPONSE 
 
4.1 The views of the Planning Service are expressed in the MATERIAL 

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS section below. 
 
4.2 The following were consulted regarding the application: 
 
4.3 Environment Agency – OBJECTION, for the following reasons: 
 

 Incorrect method used for assessing the impact of climate 
change on fluvial flood risk  

 
4.4 Essex & Suffolk Water – no objections, subject to Informatives 
 
4.5 Thames Water – Advice provided about surface water drainage Thames 

Waters underground assets and Sewage Pumping Station; in relation to 
sewerage infrastructure capacity, there would not be an objection, subject to 
Informatives.  

 
4.6 Metropolitan Police (Designing Out Crime) – Requested conditions regarding 

designing out crime 
 
4.7 Environmental Protection (Noise) – No objections, subject to necessary 

mitigation works 
 
4.8 Environmental Protection (Contamination) – No objections, subject to 

conditions, remediation and necessary mitigation works 
 
4.9 Environmental Protection (Air Quality) – No objections, subject to necessary 

conditions 
 
4.10 LBH Waste and Recycling – Advise that the proposals for refuse storage and 

collection are acceptable 
 
4.11 LBH School Organisation – No objections, subject to appropriate CIL 

education contributions 
 
4.12 LBH Flood & Rivers Management Officer – No objections in principal 
 
4.13 Greater London Archaeological Advisory Service (GLAAS), Historic England – 

require pre-commencement planning conditions 
 
4.14 London Fire Brigade – Confirm that it will be necessary to install one new fire 

hydrant 
 
4.15 LBH Highways – No objections to the layout of the application site, and the 

proposed Transport Assessment, subject to conditions being included that 
deal with; i) pedestrian visibility splay, ii) highway agreement for vehicular 
access, and iii) vehicle cleansing during construction. In addition a S106 

Page 65



contribution is sought seeking funds for a Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) in 
the area should it be required in the future. The amount sought is £26,768.00  

 
4.16 Greater London Authority (GLA) –made the following observations: 
 

 Affordable Housing – a multi-site approach is proposed across nine 
sites along New Road. The applicant must commit to deliver 35% 
affordable housing; early implementation and late stage review 
mechanisms should also be secured 

 Urban design – concerns raised over the design/ appearance/ 
residential quality/ car parking/definition of public and public 
spaces/routes 

 Climate Change – advised that the final agreed energy strategy 
should be secured by the LPA, along with contributions towards off-
site mitigation 

 Transport - advise that parking provision should be reduced and 
cycle parking increased.  

 
Further, the LPA met with the GLA on the 09th January 2019 to discuss 
proposed revisions to the scheme, and Officers of the GLA confirmed that 
they were generally satisfied with the changes to the scheme. Finally, GLA 
have been advised of the latest changes to the scheme, subject of the current 
submission. 

 
4.17 Transport for London (TfL) – No objections, subject to conditions but advise 

that made the principle of the scheme is supported, provided its impacts are 
suitably mitigated. 

 
4.18 National Grid (Cadent Gas) – Advise that there are gas pipelines and 

electricity overhead lines in the vicinity of the application site   
 
4.19 Health and Safety Executive – Do not advise, on safety grounds, against the 

granting of planning permission 
 
 
5 LOCAL REPRESENTATION 
 
5.1 A total of 188 neighbouring residential and commercial properties were 

notified about the application and invited to comment. The application has 
been publicised by way of site notice displayed in the vicinity of the application 
site. The application has also been publicised in the local press. 

 
5.2 The number of representations received from neighbours, local groups etc. in 

response to notification and publicity of the application were as follows: 
 
No of individual responses: 3 objections 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



Representations 
 

5.3 The following issues were raised in representations that are material to the 
determination of the application, and they are addressed in substance in the 
next section of this report: 
 
Objections 
 

 The provision of residential development close to existing noisy industrial 
activities involved in the distribution and fabrication of steel  would lead to 
complaints from new residential occupiers 

 Existing businesses should not have unreasonable restrictions put upon 
them because of the introduction of new residential use 

 Business activities will be hugely effected as will employees families 
incomes 

 Loss of their home; they do not wish to move 
 

Officer Response 
 

 The issue of existing industrial noise in proximity to the proposed 
residential development has been considered at length by the 
Environmental Protection (Noise) team of Havering Council. The Noise 
team have no objections to this outline planning application, subject to the 
imposition of planning conditions 

 In terms of the impact of the development upon existing residential and 
industrial occupiers, the redevelopment of this part of New Road is 
envisaged in terms of the status of the GLA Rainham and Beam Park 
Housing Zone in terms of unlocking the delivery of housing, including 
affordable housing.  

 It is anticipated that existing residential and industrial occupiers of the 
application site would be compensated as part of the Compulsory 
Purchase Order by negotiations; these arrangements would normally take 
place following the grant of outline planning permission 

 The Housing Zone Strategy was subject an Equality Impact Assessment 
by the GLA under the provisions of section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010  

 
 

6  MATERIAL PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
6.1 The main planning issues raised by the application that the committee must 

consider are: 
 

 Principle of Development 

 SPC Feedback/ Design Response 

 Density/Site Layout 

 Design/Impact on Street/Garden Scene 

 Impact on Amenity 

 Highway/Parking 

 Affordable Housing/Mix 

Page 67



 Drainage and Flood Risk 

 School Places and Other Contributions 
 

Principal of Development 
 

6.2 In terms of national planning policies, the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019 (NPPF) sets out the overarching roles that the planning system ought to 
play, including a set of core land-use planning principles that should underpin 
decision-taking, one of those principles being: 

 
“Planning decisions should promote an effective use of land in meeting the 
need for homes.” Para 117 
 
“Planning decisions should give substantial weight to the value of using 
suitable brownfield land within settlements for homes.” Para 118 

 
6.3 Policies within the London Plan seek to increase and optimise housing in 

London, in particular Policy 3.3 on ‘Increasing Housing Supply’ and Policy 3.4 
on ‘Optimising Housing Potential’. 

 
6.4 Policy CP1 of the LDF on ‘Housing Supply’ expresses the need for a minimum 

of 535 new homes to be built in Havering each year through prioritising the 
development of brownfield land and ensuring it is used efficiently. Table 3.1 of 
the London Plan supersedes the above target and increases it to a minimum 
ten year target for Havering (2015-2025) of 11,701 new homes or 1,170 new 
homes each year.  Policy 3 in the draft Havering Local Plan sets a target of 
delivering 17,550 homes over the 15 year plan period, with 3,000 homes in 
the Beam Park area. Ensuring an adequate housing supply to meet local and 
sub-regional housing need is important in making Havering a place where 
people want to live and where local people are able to stay and prosper. 

 
6.5 The aspiration for a residential-led redevelopment of the Rainham and Beam 

Park area was established when the area was designated a Housing Zone by 
the GLA.  Furthermore the production of the Planning Framework sought to 
re-affirm this and outlines potential parameters for development coming 
forward across the area with the aim of ensuring certain headline objectives 
are delivered.  The ‘Rainham and Beam Park Planning Framework’ 2016 
supports new residential developments at key sites, including along the 
A1306, and the Housing Zones in Rainham and Beam Park. Therefore the 
existing business uses are not protected by planning policy in this instance. 

 
6.6 In view of the above, the Local Planning Authority raise no in principle 

objection to a residential-led development coming forward on this site forming 
part of a development of sites north and south of New Road, in accordance 
with the policies cited above. 

 
 
 
 

Page 68



Strategic Planning Committee (SPC) Feedback/ Design Response from 
Developer 

 
6.7 Members of the SPC may recall providing feedback to the scheme at 49 – 87 

New Road, Rainham at their meeting of the 28th February 2019. In this regard, 
the report will set out the individual comments made, followed by the 
response of the developers: 

 
 SPC Feedback 1 
 

Detail/justification is sought on why there has been an increase in storey 
height and units numbers from the original submission. The value of 
comparison with Beam Park was queried. Consider the justification for heights 
carefully. Further exploration of the height was invited given the relationship 
with the properties to the rear 
 
Developer Response 1 
 
The existing and proposed building heights directly to the east and north are 4 
storeys and this therefore drives the predominant proposed height of 4 
storeys, which is as per the guidance of the Rainham and Beam Park 
Planning Framework. 
 
The design intent of the masterplan is to bookend the site with 6 storey 
blocks, providing a focal point from Betterton Road, and also at the centre of 
the site overlooking the communal garden, optimising views out over the 
green. 
 
The variations in height on each block will create a textured and articulated 
roofscape. This gives the streetscape a hierarchy and helps wayfinding by 
clearly defining the different blocks on the street. This will improve the 
architectural quality along New Road from the previous proposals which 
comprised 4 uniform, linear blocks each of 4 storeys. Marking the corners with 
taller elements of 6 creates a legible beginning and end to the site, helping 
establish a sense of destination and identity for the development. 
 
The points of height are narrow in profile and located on the north edge of the 
development to ensure that they will not adversely impact the new green 
spaces receiving an abundance of sunlight. The layout to the south 
incorporates large gaps between blocks, and the southerly blocks on the site 
are limited to 4 storeys to allow sunlight into the courtyard gardens. 
The distances to neighbouring properties all far exceed recommended 
minimum separation distances with the closest distance to neighbouring 
residential windows being 33.5m. 
 
The proposal has been designed to minimise overshadowing to neighbouring 
gardens in line with BRE best practice guidelines. So that no gardens are 
materially impacted by overshadowing from the proposal and all will continue 
to receive direct sunlight during the day. Further to this, the scheme has been 
designed to ensure that new green spaces receive an abundance of sunshine 

Page 69



through the day, with breaks in the building form allowing sunlight through and 
between the buildings. 
 
SPC Feedback 2 
 
Whether a tunnel effect would be created along both sides of the A1306 
given the heights approved/proposed 
 
Developer Response 2 
 
The separation distance between the buildings either side of New Road is 
33.5M. Whilst London Borough of Havering planning policy does not dictate 
minimum separation distances, these are typically accepted to be 18-21m. 
The proposed 33.5m, therefore, greatly exceeds these minimum distances. 
 
Adverse wind conditions are often caused by drastic variations in building 
height; this is not the case for New Road. The greater the area of the 
windward face, the greater the potential problem, because of the absence of 
shelter from similar buildings. In the case of RW4B and the immediate 
developments to the local area, no ‘towers’ are proposed immediately 
adjacent to the road. 
 
SPC Feedback 3 
 
Further detail is sought on how the scheme responds to the Rainham and 
Beam Park Planning Framework and where it is contrary, what the justification 
is for that? Particular reference was made to height and density 
 
Developer Response 3 
 
Site RW4B lies within the Beam Parkway character area of the Rainham and 
Beam Park Planning Framework. The following table sets out the masterplan 
principles that are applicable to the site and illustrates how the design 
proposals respond. Where the proposals are non-compliant, please refer to 
the response as noted in the justification column. 
 
Development 
Principle 

Masterplan Guidance Design Proposal 
Compliance 

Justification 

 
Residential Density 

 
60-80 dwellings / 
hectare 
 

 

x 
Refer to 
Response 1 

 
Building Heights 

 
4 storeys fronting 
onto New Road; 2-3 
storey town houses 
to the rear 
 

 
 

x 

 
Refer to 
Response 1 

 
Frontages 

 

 
Street based urban 
development with 
continuous frontages; 
buildings to turn 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 70



corners; a consistent 
building line along 
New Road (Beam 
Parkway) with 
main entrances 
facing this street 

 

 

√ 
 

 
 

 
Vehicular Access 
 

 
Continuous internal 
east-west local street 
to connect the Beam 
Park Centre in the 
west with the 
Mudlands area in the 
east; East-west route 
to be connected with 
New Road via north-
south connecting 
streets 
The following streets 
north of New Road 
need to be linked: 
• Betterton Road 
• Phillip Road; 
 
Lanes, residential 
courts and mews 
streets to apply 
single surface street 
design / Home Zone 
design principles to 
slow 
travel speeds and to 
support the social 
role of the street 

 

 
 
 
 
 

√ 

 
 
 
 

 
Car Parking 

 
Mix of undercroft 
parking under 
communal garden 
deck (apartment 
buildings) and on 
street parking;  
 
Maximum standards: 
• 0.5 space per 1 
bedroom or studio 
unit; 
• 1 space per 2 
bedroom unit; 
• 1.5 spaces per 3 
bedroom unit; and 
• 2 spaces per 4+ 
bedroom unit. 
 
 

 

 
 
 

x 
 
 
 
 
 
 

√ 

 
 
 
Refer to 
response 5 

 

Public open space 
 

Provide local green 
  

Page 71



 spaces; Green space 
to extend the 
landscape treatment 
on New Road (Beam 
Parkway); Provide 
adequate children’s 
play facilities 

√ 

 
 

SPC Feedback 4 
 
 The applicant is invited to consider the context of the borough 
  

Developer Response 4 
 

As noted in Response 1, through design development careful consideration 
has been given to ensure that the proposals height and massing sits 
comfortably with the existing and emerging contexts and contributes to the 
success of place making through articulated and integrated design proposals. 
 
Pockets of green space, defensible planting along New Road and clear 
pedestrian movement routes have been introduced into the proposals 
significantly increasing the quality of the environment at ground floor level 
(internally and externally), improving legibility and 
wayfinding, allowing for integration with the proposed linear park and 
contributing to place making. Amenity space across the site has increased 
from 1176sqm to 1634sqm. 
 
The proposal seeks to optimise the delivery of new homes and harness the 
opportunity to create a new green neighbourhood. The large communal 
gardens will add to the garden community vision for the Borough, whilst the 
varied offering of dwelling sizes and tenures, including 35% affordable 
dwellings, will add to the mixed and sustainable community. 

 
SPC Feedback 5 
 
How is the applicant working through the potential tensions between growth 
in housing numbers and car ownership? 
 
Developer Response 5 

  
It is understood that the Council would be consulting on a CPZ in the vicinity 
of the proposed development sites. The applicant has therefore developed an 
approach to car parking provision and management on the assumption that 
the proposed developments will therefore need to be “self-sufficient” in 
respect of its car parking provision and it is envisaged that residents 
occupying the developments (save for blue badge holders) will not be eligible 
to apply for car parking permits within the CPZ. 
 
The applicant will implement a car parking management strategy which will in 
the first instance seek to allocate car parking spaces proportionate to the 

Page 72



tenure split on a percentage basis. How these car parking spaces are 
allocated to individual units will depend on the tenure. The applicant will hire a 
parking management company to enforce the parking on the estate. 
 
10% of the car parking spaces will be wheelchair accessible. A common 
sense approach is used to allocate wheel chair car park spaces to adaptable 
properties. 
 
Further, and in terms of Car Clubs, these are a mode of transport which 
compliments the public transport upgrades being proposed for the local area. 
Car clubs are attractive to buyers and tenants as their property comes with 
access to a car without the high purchase and running costs. In addition, car 
clubs contribute towards reducing congestion and encourage a sustainable 
and economical alternative to car ownership. 
 
Finally, a key element to the success of the car parking management strategy 
is transparency up front so new residents can make an informed decision 
about the property they wish to buy/ rent. The applicant will therefore make it 
clear in any sales literature and through the Council’s Choice Based Lettings 
Nominations: 
 

1. There is a CPZ in operation in the area; 
2. Residents occupying the developments (save for blue badge 
holders) will not be eligible to apply for car parking permits within the 
CPZ; 
3. Those residents who do not acquire/ are allocated a car parking 
space will not be eligible to park on the estate; and ensure 
4. The publication and marketing material on the Car Club network to 
be provided. 
5. Car parking management will be enforced, the principles of which 
are as above and as set out within the Transport Assessment Revision. 

 
SPC Feedback 6 
 
What is the typical car club cost? Annual membership and per rental cost 

  
Developer Response 6 

 
The graph below look at the cost comparison between casual use car 
ownership and car club costs 
 

 Car Club Car Ownership 

 
Cost of Car 

 
Joining Fee £60 
(Annually) 

 
Purchasing Car 
£4,000 - £5,000 

Insurance Included in Joining Fee 
Excess £50 

£1028 per year  
Excess £30 

Petrol + Full 12 
months service 

Petrol Included for up to 
60 miles per day 
 

Petrol Approx. £400 
(2,000 miles usage per 
year 

Page 73



 
Full service included 

 
Full service £100 - £150 

MOT + 
Breakdown Cover 

MOT and Breakdown 
Cover included 

MOT £54.85 
Breakdown Cover £108 
(AA) 

Residents Parking 
Permits 

N/A £35 for 12 months 

Hourly/ Daily Rate £6 - £7 per hour 
£52 - £65 per day 

N/A 

   

Total cost for 12 
months 

£1,428.80 
(Average cost when 
using car for maximum of 
4 hours per week) 

£2,791.00 
(Average cost per year 
over 5-years with the car 
purchase 

 
 
SPC Feedback 7 
 
What is the consequence of this in terms of traffic flows and wider 
environmental impact? What are the traffic management proposals? What is 
the thinking on the transport strategy? 
 
Developer Response 7 
 
The Transport Strategy has been guided by following principles: 
 
• To promote awareness of transport issues and the impact of traffic on the 
local environment; 
• To show a commitment to improving traffic conditions within the local area; 
• To influence the level of private car journeys to and from the site in order to 
reduce air pollution and the consumption of fossil fuels; 
• To reduce the number of single occupancy trips to and from the site that 
would be predicted for the site without the implementation of the Travel Plan; 
• To increase the proportion of journeys to and from the site by sustainable 
modes of transport such as walking, cycling and public transport; 
• To promote walking and cycling as a health benefit to residents; 
• To provide access to a range of facilities for work, education, health, leisure, 
recreation and shopping by means other than single occupancy vehicle; 
• To reduce the perceived safety risk associated with the alternatives of 
walking and cycling; 
• To promote greater participation in transport related projects throughout the 
area. 
 
The resultant predicted traffic generations for the proposed residential 
development show a small increase over existing traffic flow conditions in the 
peak periods, but a significant reduction over the whole day. Consequently, 
there would be a reduced traffic flow impact overall if the proposed 
development receives a planning consent. The issue of overspill parking 
arising from the existing business would also be removed if the proposal were 
to receive consent adding to the overall beneficial impact. 

Page 74



 
The proposal now provides the levels of vehicle parking agreed with the GLA 
at 122 car spaces and 449 cycle spaces (6 visitor cycle spaces). The number 
of disabled spaces and those with provision for electric charging are to the 
recommended percentages required by the GLA/TfL. 
 
For service deliveries to the site there is a new concierge with parking/ service 
bay for loading/ unloading, where deliveries can’t be received by an occupant. 
This can help reduce traffic movement around the site. Furthermore, refuse 
collection will take place from the side roads and / or service road that runs 
the length of the site with refuse collection vehicles able to enter and leave in 
forward gear from the proposed access points. Therefore, site can be 
serviced without detriment to current or future highway condition 
 
SPC Feedback 8 
 
What is the basis/applicants’ justification for rigidly following the GLA 
comments? 
 
Developer Response 8 
 
Design proposals as presented to the SPC were developed in response to 
and in consideration of: 
 
• Local housing land supply pressures; 
• Viability pressures and the applicants desire to deliver 35% affordable    
housing across the 9 masterplan programme sites 
• Place making and integration with the Linear Park proposals. 
 
Through collaboration and consultation with the Havering Council’s Planning 
Officers and the Principal Urban Design Officer at the GLA, comments were 
considered in response to these pressures and in the context of the existing 
and emerging environment. Comments were positively adopted where 
sensible, rational and appropriate for the local area balanced against the risk 
associated with an underdeveloped scheme which does not respond 
positively to the GLA’s comments, potentially resulting in a GLA call-in of the 
application for its own determination. 
 
Notwithstanding this, the design proposals for the site have evolved further 
since the presentation to SPC, to respond directly to the SPC’s concerns on 
height especially, which have reduced by two storeys, with further design 
development as set out in Response 1. 
 
SPC Feedback 9 
 
Further detail is sought on the unit mix 
 
 
 
 

Page 75



Developer Response 9 
 
The current proposal increases the total number of dwellings by 52 dwellings, 
however notably the percentage of 1 bedroom dwellings is reduced from 30% 
to 24% to support the aspirations of the masterplan to create a mixed and 
sustainable community.. The planning application is in outline, and as such 
the mix shown is illustrative and has been developed to assess development 
impacts on matters such as traffic generation, public transport capacity, play 
requirements etc. 
 
 
Current Proposal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Previous Proposal (June 2017) 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
SPC Feedback 10 
 
Sustainability credentials and environmental standards to be employed 
 
Developer Response 10 
 
The energy strategy for RW4B has been developed in line with the energy 
policies of the London Plan and Havering Core Strategy. 
 
The Rainham & Beam Park Regeneration Framework area has been 
identified by the GLA as a target cluster for the deployment of a district 
heating network in the London Riverside Opportunity Area. Should connection 
be made to the wider heat network it has been estimated to reduce regulated 
CO2 emissions under the SAP2012 carbon factor and annual carbon savings 
are estimated to increase to 43.5%. 
 
The following measures will be introduced to ensure the development 
achieves these performance levels. 
 
Be Lean 

• Specify levels of insulation beyond Building Regulation requirements 

FLATS 1bed/ 
2 person 

2bed/ 
3 person 

3bed/ 
4 person 

3bed/ 
5person 

TOTAL 

NUMBER 58 24 78 79 239 

 24% 10% 33% 33% 100% 

FLATS 1bed/ 
2 person 

2bed/ 
3 person 

3bed/ 
4 person 

3bed/ 
5person 

TOTAL 

NUMBER 56 0 58 73 187 

 30% 0% 31% 39% 100% 

Page 76



• High air tightness levels 
• Efficient lighting 
• Energy saving controls for space conditioning and lighting 

Be Clean 
• Air Source Heat Pumps 
• Potential future connection to wider District Heating Network 

 Be Green 
• PV panels on rooftops 

 
SPC Feedback 11 

 
 Modern methods of refuse and recycling storage are encouraged 
 

Developer Response 11 
 

The refuse and recycling strategy has been developed in line with the 
Havering “Waste Management Practice Planning Guidance For Architects and 
Developers”  
 
All bin stores are internal to ensure that refuse is not left visible in the public 
realm. 
 
A vehicle access route is included at the rear of the proposal to ensure 
collection occurs from off-street locations. 
All bins located within 30m of an external door. 
Storage areas will be hard-floored and well lit. 
2m minimum width of access threshold to the compound to allow for removal 
and return of containers whilst servicing. 
Layout is such that any one container may be removed without the need to 
move any other with at least 150mm clearance space between the containers. 
Adequate ventilation will be provided within the compound. 
 
Underground Refuse Systems (URS) were considered during the design 
development of the proposal, however, after discussion with the Havering 
Refuse team, it was noted that turning circle requirements for the URS are 
greater as the vehicles are wider which would result in a loss of car parking 
spaces, and thus it was felt not to be an appropriate strategy for this site. 
 
SPC Feedback 12 

 
 Assurances are sought regarding design quality  
 

Developer Response 12 
 

The applicant is committed to ensuring the proposal delivers a high quality 
development, both in terms of meeting the requirements of local and regional 
planning policy, notably Part 2 of the Draft London Housing SPG, and 
ensuring that new homes are desirable and marketable commercial products. 
 

Page 77



The application will include a design code to set clear guidance to the 
developer and designer of the reserved matters application regarding all 
design parameters which influence design quality. 

 
 SPC Feedback 13 
 

Specifically in relation to the Framework and the location of the site, why have 
the houses been removed from the scheme? 

 
Developer Response 13 
 
The site layout for the June 2017 planning application included houses to the 
south of the site. This was problematic as it created a number of private 
gardens directly adjacent to the Rainham Steel goods yard, which is a source 
of noise pollution identified as a greater concern/ issue for Rainham Steel and 
potential occupiers post-submission, and further, it created a private boundary 
condition with a potential future development site, prejudicing the potential 
future layout of the neighbouring site. 
 
The revised design includes a landscape buffer and vehicle route on the site’s 
southern boundary to create a significant separation between the residential 
buildings and the industrial land, which reduces the noise level at the location 
of the closest building facade. 
 
The majority of the proposed communal gardens are screened from the noise 
source by flatted blocks to improve the usability of the amenity spaces. The 
placement of this vehicle route will also not prejudice the future development 
potential of the land to the south, if this has to come forward as a site for 
residential use. 
 
Density/Site Layout 
 

6.8 The development proposal is to provide 239.No residential units on a site area 
of 1.932ha (10, 932m²), which equates to a density of 124 units per ha (382 
hr/ha). The site is an area with low-moderate accessibility with a PTAL of 2. 
Policy SSA12 of the LDF specifies a density range of 30-150 units per 
hectare; the London Plan density matrix suggests a density of 45-170 units 
per hectare in an urban context with a PTAL of 2-3 (suggesting higher 
densities within 800m of a district centre or a mix of different uses). The 
Adopted Rainham and Beam Park Planning Framework suggest a density of 
between 100-120 dwellings per hectare. 

 
6.9 Although this is higher than the GLA’s guidance range, the increase responds 

directly to the GLA’s comments that there is scope to increase the quantum of 
development. Further, there is a justification for a high density development 
due to its location within the Opportunity Area and close proximity to the 
Beam Park Centre and new station. The Local Planning Authority is in 
agreement with this approach, both in terms of maintaining a maximum 6 
storey building height, which develops a coherent strategy with adjoining sites 

Page 78



along the north side of New Road, and the taller buildings to the west at Beam 
Park.  

 
6.10 Based on the building footprint and the building height indicated on the 

proposed parameter plans, the proposed apartment blocks would achieve 
heights of between 4 and 6 storeys. A six storey datum has been established 
across the site; however, and as advised, lower points of 4 and 5 storeys are 
introduced in the centre of the site. This is appropriate due to the varying 
context to the north and south of the site and the taller elements also create a 
profile for the buildings facing New Road. These points of height further 
respond to the proposed developments by Clarion and Countryside on the 
south side of New Road. Having reviewed the plot widths and their depths, 
the particularly wide nature of New Road and the existing heights of buildings 
and dwellings on the neighbouring sites, Officers consider the height 
proposed to be appropriate for the site in the context of a changing character 
to the area as outlined in the Framework and would not be considered 
unacceptable.  

 
6.11 As shown in the illustrative details, the majority of dwellings are double or 

triple aspect and all dwellings have private communal amenity space in the 
form of terraces or balconies, and where possible positioned to be south 
facing or overlook the communal gardens. It is considered that the indicative 
siting and orientation responds positively to the character of the area. The 
general layout plan of the building would fall in accordance with Policy DC61 
of the LDF and the LB of Havering Residential Design Supplementary 
Planning Document 2010. 

 
 Design/Impact on Street/Garden Scene. 
 
6.12 The proposal would involve the demolition of all buildings on the site, some of 

which are in a derelict condition. None of the buildings are considered to hold 
any architectural or historical value, therefore no principle objection raised to 
their demolition. 

 
6.13 Scale is a reserved matter. From the submitted Design and Access Statement 

and indicative plans it is indicated that the proposed apartment blocks fronting 
New Road would not be greater than six storeys in height to the edges of the 
development, in order to “book-end” the development. It is considered that 
would present a development at a height which does not detract from the 
current character of the street scene, both old, new and those proposed for 
the area (as shown from the submitted illustrative masterplan on proposed 
heights). It is considered that the footprint and siting of the building together 
with its dedicated parking areas would be acceptable on their planning merits.  

 
6.14 Appearance is also reserved matter. From the submitted Design and Access 

Statement, the agent has drawn attention to the proposed building design and 
has indicated that one of the main materials will be either red stock or 
buff/white facing brick, with some rendered elements.  A condition would be 
applied to the grant of any permission requiring details of material use for 
reason of visual amenity.   

Page 79



 
6.15 Landscaping is a reserved matter; it is considered that the proposal can 

achieve an acceptable level and quality of hard and soft landscaping given the 
proposed layout. A condition would be applied to the grant of any permission 
requiring details of landscaping. 

 
Impact on Amenity 

 
6.16 The distances to neighbouring properties all far exceed recommended 

minimum separation distances with the closest distance to neighbouring 
residential windows being 35.5m. The nearest windows to the east, south and 
west are all to non-residential uses. This indicates that there will be no impact 
on the privacy of existing residences. The layouts of the flats and the 
distances between the blocks within the development have been designed to 
maximise on privacy and avoid overlooking issues. 

 
6.17 Officers have further reviewed the external space provided with the proposed 

development, and the revised plans show both private and communal amenity 
space for its occupants which appear to be sufficient and in accordance with 
the Residential Design Supplementary Planning Document Policy PG20 on 
Housing Design, Amenity and Privacy in the Rainham and Beam Park 
Planning Framework. 

 
6.18 From a noise and disturbance perspective, the applicant has submitted a 

Noise Assessment and Air Quality report which reaffirms that both residents 
from within and outside the proposal would not be affected by unacceptable 
levels of noise or air pollution arising from the development.  The Councils 
Environmental Health officers have reviewed the submitted report and 
concluded that the scheme (subject to conditions imposed) would be 
compliant with Policy DC52 on Air Quality and Policy DC55 on Noise, subject 
to the introduction of appropriate planning conditions. As advised within 
paragraph 5.3 of this Report, an adjoining land owner has objected to the 
scheme on the basis that their existing steel fabrication and distribution 
industrial activities, which would include night time working, would material 
affect the future residential occupiers of the site by way of noise and 
disturbance, therefore resulting in complaints and enforcement action against 
the industrial occupiers. 

 
6.19 However, the Councils’ Senior Public Protection Officer has advised that they 

are content with the submission on the basis of the submitted Noise reporting, 
subject to the introduction of appropriate and necessary mitigation works in 
respect of this outline planning application. Further, the Senior Public 
Protection Officer has advised that they are willing to meet with the developer 
to discuss the mitigation options both before the full application is submitted 
and/or after it has been submitted to address any concerns I may have. 
Further, consideration should be given to including the noise consultants 
employed by the objectors in these discussions, to get their input at an early 
stage and therefore speed up the process. 

6.20 The proposed communal amenity space would be designed to be private, 
attractive, functional and safe. The indicative details of boundary treatments, 

Page 80



seating, trees, planting, lighting, paving and footpaths are acceptable; the 
proposed landscape design creates 1634sqm of playable space in the 
communal amenity spaces, exceeding the minimum requirement set out in the 
GLA play space calculator. Details of effective and affordable landscape 
management and maintenance regime are yet to be provided and would be 
assessed as part of any reserved matter submission.  Notwithstanding this, 
and from a crime design perspective, the proposal would present a layout that 
offers good natural surveillance to all public and private open space areas.  
The proposal would accord Policy 3.5 of the London Plan on Quality and 
Design of Housing Developments and Policy 7.1 on Lifetime Neighbourhoods 
and Policy 7.3 on Designing Out Crime, as well as Policy DC63 of the LDF on 
Delivering Safer Places. 

 
6.21 The LPA have reviewed the proposed waste storage areas catering the 

apartments, which have been set to be serviced via New Road and the 
internal service road.   As it stands, there are no overriding concerns with this 
arrangement as scheme demonstrates a convenient, safe and accessible 
solution to waste collection in keeping to guidance within Policy DC40 of the 
LDF on Waste Recycling. 

 
 Highway/Parking 
 
6.22 The application site within an area with PTAL of 2 (low-moderate 

accessibility). The total quantum of car parking has reduced to a ratio of 
1:0.51, resulting in 122 car parking spaces, with consideration given to the 
site proximity to the new Beam Park railway station; 10% of the car parking 
spaces will be wheelchair accessible, which is in accordance with the 
provisions of London Plan. The Planning Framework also expects the delivery 
of car sharing or car club provision. The maximum standards suggested in the 
Rainham and Beam Park Planning Framework (which is based on the London 
Plan) for a development of this indicative mix would be 349 spaces.  
Notwithstanding this, the LPA has to be mindful that the site would be located 
close to the proposed Beam Park station and accessibility levels would 
consequently increase.  The LPA are also mindful that this submission is an 
application for outline planning permission and the residential mix is 
potentially subject to change at reserved matters stage.  

 
6.23 It is understood that the Council is seeking to implement a CPZ in the vicinity 

of the proposed development sites. The applicant has therefore developed an 
approach to car parking provision and management on the assumption 
that the proposed developments will need to be “self-sufficient” in respect of 
its car parking provision and it is envisaged that residents occupying the 
developments (save for blue badge holders) will not be eligible to apply 
for car parking permits within the CPZ. 

 
6.24 In terms of the allocation of car parking spaces, the applicant will implement a 

car parking management strategy which will in the first instance seek to 
allocate car parking spaces proportionate to the tenure split on a percentage 
basis. 

 

Page 81



6.25 In terms of affordable rent units, car parking spaces allocated to affordable 
units will be located in the proximity of these units and be specifically 
allocated for use by this tenure. These car parking spaces will however not be 
attached to a specific property to allow flexibility over the life of the 
development. The Registered Providers Housing officer will allocate car 
parking spaces to individual families housed within the affordable units 
according to need. These spaces can also be swapped if needed by prior 
agreement with the Housing Officer. 

 
6.26 As a general rule, the car parking spaces provided for shared ownership and 

private sale tenures will be allocated to 3 bed units first and cascaded down. 
In some circumstances, car parking may be allocated to specific 1 or 2 
bedroom units based on sales consultant advice. Units will be sold together 
with a specific car parking space (exclusive right to use) and the allocated 
space confirmed in the corresponding unit lease.  

 
6.27 This approach facilitates management as well as provides transparency or the 

buyers at the outset. If someone sells their flat and they had a car parking 
space it will be included in the sale of the unit. 

 
6.28 Further, and as advised, the applicant is seeking to encourage the provision 

of a car club. Car clubs are a mode of transport which compliments the public 
transport upgrades being proposed for the local area. Car clubs are attractive 
to buyers and tenants as their property comes with access to a car without the 
high purchase and running costs. In addition, car clubs contribute towards 
reducing congestion and encourage a sustainable and economical alternative 
to car ownership. The applicant proposes to provide each new household 
forming part of the development with 1 year free membership plus £50 driving 
credit. 

 
6.29 Accordingly, and on the basis of a robust car parking management strategy, 

the LPA are content with the provision of parking proposed considering the 
122 spaces would allow the applicant at reserved matters to finalise a car 
parking management plan.  This element from the proposal adheres to 
London Plan Policy 6.13 Parking, and Policy DC33 Car Parking of the LDF. 

 
6.30 The applicant has submitted a Transport Assessment as part of this 

application which predicts that the traffic generated from the proposed 
residential development would have a negligible increase over existing traffic 
conditions, in peak periods, but a significant reduction over the whole day.   

 
 London Borough of Havering Councils Highways Engineer 
 
6.31 Has further reviewed all other highways related matters such as access and 

parking and raises no objections subject to the imposition of conditions 
(covering pedestrian visibility, vehicle access and vehicle cleansing during 
construction), financial contribution to Controlled Parking Zone and limitation 
on future occupiers from obtaining any permits in any future zone.   

 
 

Page 82



 Transport for London 
 
6.32 Healthy Streets - In its previous comments, TfL requested the design of the 

proposed servicing road through the site and public realm improvements be 
justified against the Healthy Streets approach – policy T2. This has not been 
done. New residents will benefit from the planned but not yet finalised 
conversion of New Road from dual to single carriageway with green spaces 
and enhanced cycle lanes (” Beam Parkway”). In line with draft London Plan 
(dLP) policy the Council should secure a proportionate contribution towards 
the scheme’s delivery or improved non-vehicular links to the new station. 

 
6.33 Access and Car Parking - The reduction from nine existing access points to 1 

main and 2 emergency access points is welcomed. The uncertainty of 
planning whilst the ‘Beam Parkway’ proposals for major improvements to New 
Road’s cycling and walking infrastructure are not yet agreed is acknowledged, 
however.  

 
6.34 The quantity of car spaces proposed has been nearly halved to 122 spaces 

from 239 units of the previous scheme. The ratio of 0.51 would be the 
maximum acceptable in this location; all spaces should be leased rather than 
sold. The proposed blue badge parking proportion at the outset (10%) 
exceeds dLP policy (3% plus space for future expansion to 10% if necessary). 
The applicant may therefore effect reductions to BB spaces but not increase 
general parking as a result. The provision of EVCPs meets dLP policy and a 
detailed car parking management plan should be secured by condition.  
 

6.35 The applicant notes a CPZ is ‘likely’ to be implemented in the locality: this is 
necessary to the operation of a car-and-permit free legal agreement which will 
form part of the s106. The Council may seek funding for the TMO to effect the 
latter and also for converting local on-street space(s) for car-club use. 

 
6.36 Cycle Parking - In line with its uplifted unit numbers the scheme meets dLP 

quantum minimum standards by providing 449 long stay and 6 short stay 
spaces, with “a degree” of larger spaces which needs to be at least 5% to 
meet TfL’s design standards. However more detailed plans are required in 
order to verify that the quality and space allowed for the storage meets these 
standards – this cannot be achieved by condition alone. 

 
6.37 Impacts - TfL accepts the conclusions of the transport assessment that there 

should be no significant strategic impacts on the highway or fixed rail network. 
However, it must be confirmed that the impacts of the development and its 
accesses on the Beam Parkway scheme - particularly its bus operations and 
infrastructure - are acceptable and deliver Healthy Streets and vision zero 
objectives.  

 
6.38 The revised TA lacks full mode share analysis or clear comparisons of added 

total trips by mode and this should be rectified. TfL expects around 24 peak 
hour trips from such a development however this is part of a wider re-
development of the area that is completely transforming the entire area from 
Rainham to Chequers Lane and the development each major development in 

Page 83



the area needs to contribute to bus infrastructure improvements as detailed in 
a recent detailed ‘Riverside East’ TfL study linked with area wide bus 
mitigation strategy. £2.7m was secured from the Beam Park scheme and 
similar calculations have been used to identify contributions from 90 New 
Road. Thus pro-rata at £950 per unit, TfL would expect this development to 
contribute of £175k - £225k here (dLP policies T3 and T4). 

 
6.39 Travel Planning, Construction and Servicing - TfL welcomes the submission of 

comprehensive framework Travel Plan, this should be secured, enforced, 
monitored and reviewed as part of the s106 agreement. A framework 
construction logistics plan (CLP) appears not to have been drawn up; a 
detailed plan should be secured that includes routes used to and from the 
site, hours of operation, expected number of vehicles and general good 
practice. A similar comment is raised in respect of a delivery and servicing 
plan (DSP); the detailed plan should identify efficiency and sustainability 
measures to be undertaken once the development is operational. The 
retention of a servicing road to enable off-street servicing is welcomed.  

 
6.40   Summary - Cycle parking is not yet demonstrably the required quality or detail 

of design and further information is sought on Healthy Streets/Vision Zero 
compliance. The principle of the scheme is however supported and provided 
its impacts are suitably mitigated. The applicant should ensure they are fully 
aware of the MCIL2 regulations which apply a Mayoral charge (MCIL2) of 
£25psqm GIA within LB Havering. 

 
6.41 The London Fire Brigade has raised no objection in principle. 
 
 Affordable Housing/Mix 
 
6.42 Policy DC6 of the LDF and Policies 3.9, 3.11 and 3.12 of the London Plan 

seek to maximise affordable housing in major development proposals. The 
Mayor of London Supplementary Planning Guidance “Homes for Londoners” 
sets out that where developments propose 35% or more of the development 
to be affordable at an agreed tenure split, then the viability of the development 
need not be tested – in effect it is accepted that 35% or more is the maximum 
that can be achieved.  

 
6.43 In this respect, the proposal is intended to provide 35% affordable housing 

across all sites that the applicant is looking to develop along New Road. This 
could mean less provided on this site if other sites, as part of the joint venture 
Council strategy, are developed prior to this provided more. Due to this and 
other development proposals coming forward from other applicants with low 
or zero, affordable housing, officers have sought a viability appraisal from the 
applicant which has been reviewed. The review concludes that the scheme, 
based on present day inputs, could not viably support 35% affordable 
housing, but that it could support circa 20% affordable units. In this case 
however, the developer is willing to deliver a greater level of affordable 
housing that can viably be justified based upon its unique nature as an 
applicant (a joint venture) and its appetite for and ability to spread risk across 
a portfolio of sites. In this respect, affordable housing provision is being 

Page 84



maximised, meeting the objectives of existing policy and future policy in the 
submitted local plan and draft London Plan as well as the stated ambitions of 
the Housing Zones and therefore weighs in favour of the proposal. 

  
6.44 Policy DC2 of the LDF on Housing Mix and Density specifies an indicative mix 

for market housing, this being 24% 1 bed units, 41% 2 bedroom units, and 
34% 3 bed units.  The proposal incorporates an indicative overall tenure mix 
of 24% 1 bed units, 43% 2 bed units, and 33% 3 bed units.  The proposed mix 
is and closely aligned with the above policy guidance, Officers are content 
that the mix on offer falls in accordance with policy as suggested in the Beam 
park Framework and the draft London Plan.  

 
School Places and Other Contributions 
 

6.45 Policy DC72 of the LDF emphasises that in order to comply with the principles 
as set out in several of the Policies in the Plan, contributions may be sought 
and secured through a Planning Obligation. Policy 8.2 of the London Plan 
states that development proposals should address strategic as well as local 
priorities in planning obligations. 

 
6.46 Policy DC29 states that the Council will seek payments from developers 

required to meet the educational need generated by the residential 
development. Policy 2 of the submitted Local Plan seeks to ensure the 
delivery of expansion of existing primary schools. 

 
6.47 Evidence clearly shows a shortage of school places in the Borough - (London 

Borough of Havering Commissioning Plan for Education Provision 2015/16-
2019/20). The Commissioning report identifies that there is no spare capacity 
to accommodate demand for secondary, primary and early year’s school 
places generated by new development. The cost of mitigating new 
development in respect to all education provision is £8,672 (2013 figure from 
Technical Appendix to S106 SPD). On that basis, it is necessary to require 
contributions to mitigate the impact of additional dwellings in the Borough. It is 
considered that, in this case, £4500 towards education projects required as a 
result of increased demand for school places is reasonable when compared to 
the need arising as a result of the development. A contribution of 
£1,264,500.00 would therefore normally be appropriate for school place 
provision.  

 
6.48 As previously advised, the Education contribution would be not sought should 

the planning permission be granted, as Havering CIL would cover school 
places funding. 

   
6.49 The Rainham and Beam Park Planning Framework seeks to deliver a new 

Beam Parkway linear park along the A1306 including in front of this site and 
seeks developer contributions for those areas in front of development sites. 
The plans are well advanced and costings worked out – based on the 
frontage of the development site to New Road, the contribution required for 
this particular site would be £ 272,308.54. This is necessary to provide a 

Page 85



satisfactory setting for the development rather than the stark, hostile and wide 
existing New Road. 

 
6.50 Policy DC32 of the LDF seeks to ensure that development does not have an 

adverse impact on the functioning of the road network. Policy DC33 seeks 
satisfactory provision of off street parking for developments. Policy DC2 
requires that parking permits be restricted in certain circumstances for 
occupiers of new residential developments. In this case, the arrival of a station 
and new residential development would likely impact on on-street parking 
pressure in existing residential streets off New Road. It would therefore be 
appropriate to introduce a CPZ in the streets off New Road. A contribution of 
£112 per unit (total £26,768.00) is sought, plus an obligation through the 
Greater London Council (General Powers) Act 1974 to prevent future 
occupants of the development from obtaining parking permits. 

 
6.51 From a sustainability perspective, the proposal is accompanied by an Energy 

Statement.  The reports outline an onsite reduction in carbon emissions by 
37.1%, to include a photovoltaic strategy, which aims to further reduce CO2 
emissions across the entire site. In assessing the baseline energy demand 
and carbon dioxide emissions for the site, a financial contribution of 
£244,200.00 has been calculated as carbon emissions offset contribution in 
lieu of on-site carbon reduction measures.  The development proposal, 
subject to contributions being sought would comply with Policy 5.2 of the 
London Plan. 

 
6.52 In respect of all the above contributions, there may be scope to negotiate the 

overall total figure required if this application were to be one of several sites 
coming forward from the same developer at the same time – therefore the 
recommended sums would be subject to subsequent review and approval. 

 
6.53 In this case, the applicant currently has no interest in the site. As such, it is 

unlikely that the current owners of the site would be willing to enter into a legal 
agreement (which is the usual method for securing planning obligations) as 
they have no role in the present application.  

 
6.54 The NPPG states that in exceptional circumstances a negatively worded 

condition requiring a planning obligation or other agreement to be entered into 
before development can commence may be appropriate in the case of more 
complex and strategically important development where there is clear 
evidence that the delivery of the development would otherwise be at serious 
risk. It is considered that this application and its context as part of a large 
multi-site strategic development presents justifiable basis to impose a 
negatively worded condition which would require an s.106 obligation to be 
provided before the commencement of development.  

 
 Drainage and Flood Risk 
 
6.55 The application site is situation within the fluvial floodplain (Flood Zone 3). 

Buildings used a dwelling houses are defined as More Vulnerable uses as set 

Page 86



out in the Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework 
2019, in comparison with the existing industrial uses at the site. 

 
6.56 The applicant has been engaged in discussions with the Environment Agency 

but whilst some matters have now been agreed, such as the possibility of 
conditioning the finished floor levels aspects of this planning application; 
however there remains a difference of opinion between the parties in terms of 
build footprint overall and the potential need for flood compensation. 

 
6.57 The Environment Agency are therefore currently maintaining an objection to 

the application 
 
6.58 The parties are continuing to liaise on outstanding matters and any further 

information will be reported verbally to the Strategic Planning Committee. In 
any event, the proposal will not be referred to the GLA for the Stage II review 
until this matter has been satisfactorily resolved.   

 
 Financial and Other Mitigation 
 
6.59 The proposal would attract the following section 106 contributions, to be 

secured through a negatively worded planning condition to mitigate the impact 
of the development: 

 

 Sum of £178,853.58 , or such other figure as is approved by the Council,  
towards provision of Linear Park in the vicinity of the site 

 Sum of £26,768.00, or such other figure as is approved by the Council,  
towards CPZ in streets north of New Road 

 Sum of £244,200.00, or such other figure as is approved by the Council,  
towards the Council’s Carbon Offset Fund 

 
6.60 The proposal would attract Mayoral Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and 

from the 01st September 2019, the London Borough of Havering CIL 
contributions to mitigate the impact of the development. As this is an Outline 
application, CIL would be assessed and applied when a reserved matters 
application is submitted. 

 
Other Planning Issues 
 
6.61 There is potential that the existing buildings may provide habitat for protected 

species. Otherwise there is no biodiversity interest in the site. Suitable 
conditions are recommended. 

 
6.62 As advised within the Consultee Responses section of the Report, there are 

Cadent Gas and Thames Water assets within proximity of the site; relevant 
Informatives would address this issue.  

 
6.63 Due to the previous industrial uses on part of the site, the land is likely to be 

contaminated. Suitable planning conditions are recommended to ensure 
remediation of the site. There also hazardous pipelines in the vicinity of the 
application site. 

Page 87



 
 
Conclusions 
 
6.64 All other relevant policies and considerations have been taken into account. 

Planning permission should be granted subject to the conditions outlined 
above for the reasons set out above. The details of the decision are set out in 
the RECOMMENDATION. 

Page 88



 

 

Strategic Planning 
Committee 
27 February 2019 

 

Subject: Quarterly Planning Performance Update 

Report. 

 

Report Author: Simon Thelwell, Head of Strategic 

Development 

 

 
1 BACKGROUND  

  

1.1 This quarterly report produces a summary of performance on planning 

applications/appeals and planning enforcement for the previous quarter, 

October to December 2020.  

 

1.2 Details of any planning appeal decisions in the quarter where committee 

resolved to refuse planning permission contrary to officer recommendation are 

also given. 

 

1.3 The Government has set performance targets for Local Planning Authorities, 

both in terms of speed of decision and quality of decision. Failure to meet the 

targets set could result in the Council being designated with applicants for 

planning permission being able to choose not to use the Council for 

determining the application 

 

 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

  

That the report be noted. 

 

3 QUALITY OF PLANNING DECISIONS 

 

3.1 In accordance with the published government standards, quality performance 

with regard to Major (10 or more residential units proposed or 1000+ sq m 

new floorspace or site area greater than 0.5 hectares), County Matter 

(proposals involving minerals extraction or waste development) and Non-

Major applications are assessed separately. If more than 10% of the total 

decisions in each category over the stated period were allowed on appeal, the 

threshold for designation would be exceeded. Due to the fact that 10% of the 

number of non-major decisions made exceeds the total number of appeals, 

Page 89

Agenda Item 10



there is no chance of designation so the performance against the non-major 

target will not be published in this report, although it will still be monitored by 

officers.  

 

3.2 On 29 November 2018, MHCLG announced that there would be two periods 

assessed for purposes of designation: 

- decisions between 1 April 2016 and 31 March 2018, with subsequent appeal 

decisions to December 2018 

- decisions between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2019, with subsequent appeal 

decisions to December 2019. 

3.3 The first period (2016-18) has passed with the Council not at risk of 

designation for this period. 

3.4 With regard to the period of decisions between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 
2019, with subsequent appeal decisions to December 2019, the period has 
passed with the final figure at 6.7% appeals allowed for major applications 
and 0% for county matter applications. Therefore the Council is not at risk of 
designation for this period. 

 
3.5 Although there has been no confirmation from MHCLG, it is reasonable to 

assume that the designation criteria will continue for the next two year rolling 
period which would cover all decisions for the period April 2018 to March 
2020. The current figures for this are: 

 
 Total number of planning decisions over period (to date): 58 

Number of appeals allowed: 2 
% of appeals allowed: 3.4% 
Appeals still to be determined: 2 
Refusals which could still be appealed: 1 

 
County Matter Applications: 

 
Total number of planning decisions over period (to date): 8 
Number of appeals allowed:  0 
% of appeals allowed: 0% 
Appeals still to be determined: 1 

 

3.6 Due to the low number of decisions that we take that are majors or county 

matters, any adverse appeal decision can have a significant effect on the 

figure. Consequently, it is considered that at this time there is a risk of 

designation. The figure will continue to be carefully monitored. 

 

3.7 As part of the quarterly monitoring, it is considered useful to provide details of 

the performance of appeals generally and summarise any appeal decisions 

received where either the Regulatory Services Committee/Strategic Planning 

Page 90



Committee/Planning Committee resolved to refuse planning permission 

contrary to officer recommendation. This is provided in the table below. 

 

Appeal Decisions Oct-Dec 2019 
 
Total Number of Appeal Decisions - 28 
Appeals Allowed -    3 
Appeals Dismissed -   25 
% Appeals Allowed -   10.7% 
 
Appeal Decisions where Committee Decision Contrary to Officer 
Recommendation 
 
Total Number of Appeal Decisions - 0 
Appeals Allowed -    0 
Appeals Dismissed -   0 
% Appeals Allowed -   N/A 
 

Appeal Decisions Oct-Dec 2019 
Decision by Committee Contrary to Officer Recommendation 

Date of 
Committee 

Application 
Details 

Summary 
Reason for 
Refusal 

Appeal 
Decision 

Summary of 
Inspectors Findings 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

 

 

 

4 SPEED OF PLANNING DECISIONS  

 

4.1 In accordance with the published government standards, speed of decision 
applies to all major and non-major development applications, with the 
threshold for designation set as follows: 

 
 Speed of Major Development (and County Matters) – 60% of decisions within 

timescale (13 or 16 weeks or such longer time agreed with the applicant) 
 
 Speed of Non-Major Development - 70% of decisions within timescale (8 

weeks or such longer time agreed with the applicant) 
 
4.2 On 29 November 2018 MHCLG announced that there would be two periods 

assessed for the purposes of designation: 
 

- Decisions made between October 2016 and September 2018 
 

- Decisions made between October 2017 and September 2019 
 
 4.3 For the period October 2017 to September 2019, performance was above the 

stated thresholds and there is no risk of designation. 

Page 91



 
4.4 Although no announcement has been made, it would be reasonable to 

assume that a further period for assessment would be for decisions made 
between October 2019 and September 2020. Performance to date on this is 
as follows: 

  
  Major Development –  82% in time 
 
 County Matter –   80% in time 
 
 Non-Major Decisions -  91% in time 
 
4.5 Based on the above performance, the Council is not at risk of designation due 

to speed of decision. The figure for future periods will continue to be 
monitored. 

 

5 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT 

 

5.1 There are no designation criteria for planning enforcement. For the purposes 
of this report, it is considered useful to summarise the enforcement activity in 
the preceding quarter. This information is provided below: 

 

Oct – Dec 2019 

Number of Enforcement Complaints Received: 187 
 
Number of Enforcement Complaints Closed: 225 
 

Number of Enforcement Notices Issued:  8 
 

Enforcement Notices Issued in Quarter 

Address Subject of Notice 

Land Adjoining 1A Willoughby Drive, 
Rainham 

Unauthorised mobile home 

73 Cross Road, Romford Use of property for vehicle hire 

Car Park, Lennards Public House, 
New Road, Rainham 

Commercial yard, storage of 
materials, residential use and 
containers 

106 Kenilworth Gardens, Hornchurch Unauthorised rear dormer 

18 Ingrebourne Road, Rainham Unauthorised rear dormer 

38 Corbets Tey Road, Upminster Unauthorised ducting and raised patio  

Burns Court, 102 Balgores Lane, 
Romford 

Breach of conditions – no renewable 
energy details submitted and satellite 
dish erected 

33 Carter Drive, Romford Unauthorised rear dormer 

 

Page 92


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes

	5 DEVELOPMENT PRESENTATIONS
	6 PE/00843/2019 - SITES NR02/03 & NR06A/6B NEW ROAD, RAINHAM
	7 APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION
	8 P0498.19 -  22 - 44 NORTH STREET, ROMFORD
	9 P1604.17 - 148 - 192 NEW ROAD, RAINHAM
	Appendix - P1604.17 148-192 New Road Report

	10 QUARTERLY PLANNING PERFORMANCE - UPDATE REPORT

